
 
NOTE: POSSIBLE ACTION ON ALL AGENDA ITEMS UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFICALLY NOTED AS DISCUSSION ONLY 

TOWN OF PAONIA 
TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 12, 2019 

BUDGET WORK SESSION 

5:00 PM 

REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING AGENDA 

6:30 PM 

Budget Work Session 

Roll Call 

Approval of Agenda 

Announcements 

Recognition of Visitors & Guests 
1. Delta County Economic Development – Request for Funding 

Consent Agenda 
2. Special Minutes October 22, 2019 

Regular Minutes October 22, 2019 

Special Minutes November 4, 2019 

Blue Sage Center for the Arts – Liquor License Renewal 

Mayor’s Report 
3. Mayor’s Report 

4. Hope West – Proclamation for Hospice & Palliative Care Month  

Staff Reports 
5. Administrator’s Report 

      Vista Master Plan Update 
Public Works 

Police Report 

Disbursements 
6. Treasurer’s Report 

7. Disbursements 

Unfinished Business 
8. Paonia Streetlights - Update 

9. Great Outdoors Colorado – Parks, Recreation, and Trails Master Plan 

New Business 
10. Trustee Appointment – Letters of Interest 

11. Local Government Designee – Discussion of Possible Comments Regarding COGCC Mission Change 

12. Superior Alarm - Town Hall Security System Upgrade 

13. CIRSA – Excess Crime Renewal Acceptance 

 

Budget 2020 

14. 2020 Budget Discussion Continued 

15. Ordinance 2019-12 Establishing Wastewater/Sewer Rates  

16. Resolution 2019-17 Establishing Garbage Rates  

17. Resolution 2019-18 Establishing Water Rates & Charges 

18. Establishing Utility Relief  

1



 
NOTE: POSSIBLE ACTION ON ALL AGENDA ITEMS UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFICALLY NOTED AS DISCUSSION ONLY 

19. Public Hearing – 2020 Proposed Budget Hearing - POSTPONED TO NOVEMBER 26th  

 

Committee Reports 

20. Finance & Personnel 

Governmental Affairs & Public Safety 

Public Works-Utilities-Facilities 

21. Space 2 Create 

22. Tree Board 

Adjournment 
23. Adjournment 

 

  

2



 
NOTE: POSSIBLE ACTION ON ALL AGENDA ITEMS UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFICALLY NOTED AS DISCUSSION ONLY 

AS ADOPTED BY: 

TOWN OF PAONIA, COLORADO 

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-10 – Amended May 22, 2018 

 

I. RULES OF PROCEDURE 

 

Section 1.  Schedule of Meetings.  Regular Board of Trustees meetings shall be held on the second and fourth Tuesdays of each 

month, except on legal holidays, or as re-scheduled or amended and posted on the agenda prior to the scheduled meeting. 

 

Section 2.  Officiating Officer.  The meetings of the Board of Trustees shall be conducted by the Mayor or, in the Mayor’s 

absence, the Mayor Pro-Tem.  The Town Clerk or a designee of the Board shall record the minutes of the meetings. 

 

Section 3.  Time of Meetings.  Regular meetings of the Board of Trustees shall begin at 6:30 p.m. or as scheduled and posted on 

the agenda. Board Members shall be called to order by the Mayor.  The meetings shall open with the presiding officer leading 

the Board in the Pledge of Allegiance.  The Town Clerk shall then proceed to call the roll, note the absences and announce 

whether a quorum is present.  Regular Meetings are scheduled for three hours, and shall be adjourned at 9:30 p.m., unless a 

majority of the Board votes in the affirmative to extend the meeting, by a specific amount of time.  

 

Section 4. Schedule of Business.  If a quorum is present, the Board of Trustees shall proceed with the business before it, which 

shall be conducted in the following manner.  Note that all provided times are estimated:  

 

 (a) Roll Call - (5 minutes) 

 (b) Approval of Agenda - (5 minutes) 

 (c) Announcements (5 minutes) 

 (d) Recognition of Visitors and Guests (10 minutes) 

 (e) Consent Agenda including Approval of Prior Meeting Minutes (10 minutes) 

 (f) Mayor’s Report (10 minutes) 

 (g) Staff Reports: (15 minutes) 

  (1) Town Administrator’s Report 

  (2) Public Works Reports  

  (3) Police Report 

  (4) Treasurer Report 

      

 (h) Unfinished Business (45 minutes) 

 (i) New Business (45 minutes) 

 (j) Disbursements (15 minutes) 

 (k) Committee Reports (15 minutes) 

 (l) Adjournment 

 

  * This schedule of business is subject to change and amendment. 

  

Section 5. Priority and Order of Business. Questions relative to the priority of business and order shall be decided by the Mayor 

without debate, subject in all cases to an appeal to the Board of Trustees.  

 

Section 6.  Conduct of Board Members.   Town Board Members shall treat other Board Members and the public in a civil and 

polite manner and shall comply with the Standards of Conduct for Elected Officials of the Town.  Board Members shall address 

Town Staff and the Mayor by his/her title, other Board Members by the title of Trustee or the appropriate honorific (i.e.: Mr., 

Mrs. or Ms.), and members of the public by the appropriate honorific.  Subject to the Mayor’s discretion, Board Members shall 

be limited to speaking two times when debating an item on the agenda.  Making a motion, asking a question or making a 

suggestion are not counted as speaking in a debate.  

 

Section 7. Presentations to the Board.  Items on the agenda presented by individuals, businesses or other organizations shall be 

given up to 5 minutes to make a presentation.  On certain issues, presenters may be given more time, as determined by the 

Mayor and Town Staff.  After the presentation, Trustees shall be given the opportunity to ask questions. 

 

Section 8. Public Comment.  After discussion of an agenda item by the Board of Trustees has concluded, the Mayor shall open 

the floor for comment from members of the public, who shall be allowed the opportunity to comment or ask questions on the 

agenda item.  Each member of the public wishing to address the Town Board shall be recognized by the presiding officer before 

speaking.  Members of the public shall speak from the podium, stating their name, the address of their residence and any group 

they are representing prior to making comment or asking a question.  Comments shall be directed to the Mayor or presiding 

officer, not to an individual Trustee or Town employee.  Comments or questions should be confined to the agenda item or issue(s) 

under discussion.  The speaker should offer factual information and refrain from obscene language and personal attacks. 

3



 
NOTE: POSSIBLE ACTION ON ALL AGENDA ITEMS UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFICALLY NOTED AS DISCUSSION ONLY 

 

Section 9.  Unacceptable Behavior. Disruptive behavior shall result in expulsion from the meeting.   

 

Section 10.  Posting of Rules of Procedure for Paonia Board of Trustees Meetings. These rules of procedure shall be provided in 

the Town Hall meeting room for each Board of Trustees meeting so that all attendees know how the meeting will be conducted. 

 

II. CONSENT AGENDA 

 

Section 1. Use of Consent Agenda. The Mayor, working with Town Staff, shall place items on the Consent Agenda. By using a 

Consent Agenda, the Board has consented to the consideration of certain items as a group under one motion. Should a Consent 

Agenda be used at a meeting, an appropriate amount of discussion time will be allowed to review any item upon request.  

Section 2. General Guidelines. Items for consent are those which usually do not require discussion or explanation prior to action 

by the Board, are non-controversial and/or similar in content, or are those items which have already been discussed or explained 

and do not require further discussion or explanation. Such agenda items may include ministerial tasks such as, but not limited 

to, approval of previous meeting minutes, approval of staff reports, addressing routine correspondence, approval of liquor 

licenses renewals and approval or extension of other Town licenses. Minor changes in the minutes such as non-material Scribner 

errors may be made without removing the minutes from the Consent Agenda.  Should any Trustee feel there is a material error 

in the minutes, they should request the minutes be removed from the Consent Agenda for Board discussion. 

Section 3. Removal of Item from Consent Agenda. One or more items may be removed from the Consent Agenda by a timely 

request of any Trustee. A request is timely if made prior to the vote on the Consent Agenda. The request does not require a 

second or a vote by the Board. An item removed from the Consent Agenda will then be discussed and acted on separately either 

immediately following the consideration of the Consent Agenda or placed later on the agenda, at the discretion of the Board.  

 

III.  EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 

Section 1.  An executive session may only be called at a regular or special Board meeting where official action may be taken by 

the Board, not at a work session of the Board.  To convene an executive session, the Board shall announce to the public in the 

open meeting the topic to be discussed in the executive session, including specific citation to the statute authorizing the Board 

to meet in an executive session and identifying the particular matter to be discussed “in as much detail as possible without 

compromising the purpose for which the executive session is authorized.” In the even the Board plans to discuss more than one 

of the authorized topics in the executive session, each should be announced, cited and described. Following the announcement 

of the intent to convene an executive session, a motion must then be made and seconded.  In order to go into executive session, 

there must be the affirmative vote of two thirds (2/3) of Members of the Board. 

 

Section 2.  During executive session, minutes or notes of the deliberations should not be taken. Since meeting minutes are subject 

to inspection under the Colorado Open Records Act, the keeping of minutes would defeat the private nature of executive 

session. In addition, the deliberations carried out during executive session should not be discussed outside of that session or 

with individuals not participating in the session.  The contexts of an executive session are to remain confidential unless a 

majority of the Trustees vote to disclose the contents of the executive session. 

 

Section 3.  Once the deliberations have taken place in executive session, the Board should reconvene in regular session to take 

any formal action decided upon during the executive session.  If you have questions regarding the wording of the motion or 

whether any other information should be disclosed on the record, it is essential for you to consult with the Town Attorney on 

these matters. 

 

 

IV. SUBJECT TO AMENDMENT 

 

Section 1. Deviations.  The Board may deviate from the procedures set forth in this Resolution, if, in its sole discretion, such 

deviation is necessary under the circumstances. 

Section 2.  Amendment.   The Board may amend these Rules of Procedures Policy from time to time. 

  

4



 

November 6, 2019 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Budget Work Session 

Summary:   

A necessary session to completely review the modified 2020 budget prior to the public 

hearing. 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Vacant Seat Trustee Budinger: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



 

November 6, 2019 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Roll Call 

Summary:   

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: VACANT Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

26



 

November 6, 2019 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Agenda Approval 

Summary:   

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: VACANT Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

27



 

November 6, 2019 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Announcements 

Summary:   

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: VACANT Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

28



 

November 6, 2019 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Visitors & Guests 

Summary:   

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: VACANT Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

29

1.



 

November 6, 2019 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Delta County Economic Development – Request for Funding 

Summary:   

DCED requests funding from the Town to restructure and expand services throughout the 

County. 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: VACANT Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

30

1.



31

1.



One Delta County  
An economic alliance of values-aligned  businesses, service providers, non-profits, and local 
governments working to improve SHARED PROSPERITY and CREATE EQUITABLE OPPORTUNITIES for all 
Delta County communities by connecting businesses, current and future employees, visitors, and 
decision makers. 

 
  

Who We Are 
As the umbrella economic prosperity organization One Delta County works to elevate our communities 
businesses, employees, and families. This alliance’s primary focus is to spark collaboration and 
communication. The alliance will support efforts across the county to grow our businesses, develop 
future leaders, and celebrate our communities. 

 

 

One Delta County is working to ensure: 
 

 

Our businesses thrive

Our communities are vibrant

Employers find qualified employees

Employees earn livable wages

Entreprenuers are celebrated

New business is welcomed

Visitors fall in love with Delta County

1

32

1.



 

 

 

 

One Delta will work to achieve this vision by establishing clear goals, outcomes, and work plans. One 

Delta will have three primary goals including:

 

One Delta will be governed by a reconstituted Board of Directors that more broadly reflects the 

uniqueness of our communities and our businesses. There will be a seat on the board for each local 

government, each Chamber of Commerce, business leaders, and ex-officio members to broaden 

participation.  Ex-officio members include partners that are important to economic development in 

Delta County such as Tourism, Uncompahgre Development, Region 10, and SBDC as examples.  

Collaboration & 
Communication

• Streamline Econ. 
Development

• Shared Vision

• Solve Problems

• Turn opportunity to 
action

• Marketing & 
Promotion

• Change the Dialogue

• Positive Story Telling

Education & 
Leadership 

Development

• Training

• Engagement

• Quarterly Economic 
Data Updates

• Networking

• Leadership Training

Business Growth

• ENGAGE

• Economic Gardening

• Business Expansion

• Business 
Recruitment

• Location Neutral 
Employees

2

33

1.



 

 

The role of the Board of Directors will be to set the strategic direction of One Delta, and create a forum 

where One Delta partners can focus on coordination and collaboration.  The Board of Directors will meet 

quarterly. 

The day to day needs of One Delta will be guided and directed by an Executive Committee, which will 

meet monthly. This Executive Committee will consist of 8-9 Board members and will include a Chair, 

Past Chair, Vice Chair, Secretary, Treasurer, and 3-4 additional members. The Executive Committee will 

be responsible for overseeing the monthly budget and finances of One Delta, overseeing work plans, 

and provided direction to Staff on the implementation of One Delta programs and services. 

One Delta will be staffed by a Delta County employee, funded in partnership with all of the 

municipalities. Delta County staff will provide program management. Administrative support will also be 

made available by Delta County. Staff will be responsible for working with the Executive Committee and 

the Board of Directors to oversee and implement the programs and services offered by One Delta.  Staff 

will manage the implementation of One Delta programs by working directly with committees that are 

formed to provide more direct focus on One Delta programs. These committees will include: 

 Business Recruitment Committee: This committee will include private sector members from the 

Board of Directors and from the broader membership of One Delta, and will be the primary 

point of contact for businesses interested in relocating to Delta County.  This group will help 

develop marketing and promotions material, economic forecasts, and maintain an inventory of 

available commercial properties. 

 

 Business Support Committee: This committee will focus on improving communication with 

existing businesses in the County to begin to better understand business needs. This committee 

ONE Delta 
County 

Board of 
Directors

Local Gov 
Rep's (7)

School, 
Library and 
Hospital (3)

Chambers (5)

Local 
Businesses (4-

6)

Ex-Officios or 
Special 

Appointments

3

34

1.



will help One Delta identify programming and services that can be offered to businesses in the 

County to help them grow. This committee will also focus on existing economic development 

efforts including: 

o ENGAGE 

o Opportunity Zones/Community Prospectus 

 

 Education & Leadership Committee: This committee will offer countywide economic 
development meetings/trainings/events addressing trends, issues and best practices. This 
committee will also help develop a leadership program that introduces youth, business owners 
and residents to the partner organizations as a strategy to succession planning, building a 
volunteer base, and future elected officials/appointees. 

 

 Community Liaisons: This committee will provide improved communication with each 

municipality in the County, and be a think tank on how One Delta can assist communities in 

addressing their unique economic and community development needs.  

 

 

 

4

35

1.



Board of 

Directors 

One Delta Project 

Manager     

(County Employee) 

Executive 

Committee 

One Delta Year 1 Organization Chart 

One Delta   

501(c)3  

Accountant Delta County Comm. & 

Econ. Dev. Director 

Business Growth 

Education &   

Leadership       

Development 

Collaboration &  

Communication 

One Delta Programs & Services 

5

36

1.



Board of 

Directors 

One Delta  

Executive Director 

Executive 

Committee 

One Delta Year 3-5 Organization Chart 

Business            

Retention/

Recruitment 

Education &   

Leadership       

Development 

Collaboration &  

Communication 

One Delta Programs and Services 

One Delta   

501(c)3  

Accountant 

6

37

1.



Publicly Funded  Project Manager 

Salary 50,000 

Health Insurance $10,169 

Retirement $2,000 

FICA $3,825 

TOTAL $65,994 

Privately 

Funded 

Operations 

Budget 

Marketing $10,000 

Events & Meetings $10,000 

Accounting $4,000 

Special Projects $9,250 

Operational Costs 

(Insurance, phone, 

office, utility, web-

site) 

$12,000 

TOTAL $45,250 

Budgets 

7

38

1.



One Delta Staffing  

Years 1- 3  

Local Government Contributions 

 Financial Contribution utilizing sales tax share formula to establish equity in participation (Delta County collects 

2% sales tax; of which 1% is shared- 60% to the county, the remaining 40% is shared between the municipal-

ities; per the percent share column below.)  

 Local Government commitment to support staffing/capacity of One Delta 

 County & City of Delta covering portion of Smaller Municipalities in Year 1 & Year 2 to allow municipalities to 

Local Government Funders Percent Share  Year 1   Year 2   Year 3  

Delta County 0.6   $    42,734   $    41,165   $    39,596  

City of Delta 0.52   $    16,864   $    15,295   $   13,727  

Town of Orchard City 0.1822   $      2,405   $      3,607   $     4,810  

Town of Cedaredge 0.13165   $      1,738   $      2,606   $      3,475  

Town of Paonia 0.08479   $      1,119   $      1,679   $      2,238  

Town of Hotchkiss 0.05156   $         681   $      1,021   $      1,361  

Town of Crawford 0.02519   $         332   $         499   $         665  

8

39

1.



One Delta Operational Budget  

Supported through  

Non-Profit, Service Provider, & Private Sector Contributions 

 Operational Budget of One Delta 

 Office, accounting services, phones, website, etc 

 Projects, programs, etc 

 Contribution 

Non Profits (i.e. Chambers) $750.00 

Service Providers $20,500 

Private Business $24,000 

TOTAL $45,250 

9

40

1.



 

November 6, 2019 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Special Minutes October 22, 2019 

Regular Minutes October 22, 2019 

Special Minutes November 4, 2019 

Blue Sage Center for the Arts – Liquor License Renewal 

Summary:   

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Vacant Seat Trustee Budinger: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

41

2.



 

 

  

OCTOBER 22, 2019 SPECIAL TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 1 

 

Minutes 

Special Town Board Meeting 

Town of Paonia, Colorado 

October 22, 2019 

  

 

RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 

The Special Meeting of the Town Board of Trustees held Tuesday, October 22, 2019, was called 

to order at 5:07 PM by Mayor Charles Stewart, followed by the Pledge of Allegiance.  

Roll Call 
1. Roll Call 

Trustees present were as follows: 

 
Mayor Charles Stewart 

Trustee William Bear 

Trustee Karen Budinger 

Trustee Dave Knutson 

 

ABSENT 

Mayor Pro-Tem Chelsea Bookout 

Trustee Mary Bachran 
 

Approval of Agenda 
 

1. Approval of Agenda 

 

Mayor Stewart stated that the special town board meeting was requested in writing by a 

majority of the Board. 

 

 Motion made to approve the agenda as presented. 

 Motion made by Trustee Bear, Seconded by Trustee Budinger. 
Voting Yea: Trustee Bear, Trustee Budinger, Trustee Knutson. 

 

Unfinished Business 

1. Special Meeting – Budget 2020 

 

Mayor Stewart started the meeting by discussing the general fund – building page 5. 

 

Discussion Points: 

● Building fees 

● Building Permit fee - annualized vs actual  

● Meetings with Building Inspector - invoicing for time 

● Fee schedule – analyze in-depth 

 

Motion to reduce building expenses to $6,500.  

Motion made by Trustee Bear seconded by Trustee Knutson.  

Voting Yay: Trustee Bear, Trustee Knutson, Trustee Budinger. 

 

Discussion ensued regarding general fund - public safety page 6 and page 7.   

Finance Officer Cindy Jones stated Delta County anticipates the passing of the 1% increase for 

Back the Badge which is on the ballot for voters to vote if it does not pass a meeting will need to 

be scheduled soon after to discuss overall budget funds.  

 

Discussion Points for Sales Tax - Back the Badge  

● Public safety  

● Competitive Wages  

42

2.



 

 

  

OCTOBER 22, 2019 SPECIAL TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 2 

 

● Travel and Meetings - Training for the Paonia Police Department  

● Operating supplies - Paonia Police Department in-house training - firearm instructor, and 

Arrest control instructor. 

 

Discussion ensued regarding general fund - Park page 8, page 9 and page 10 

Discussion Points: 

● Colorado Grand - repair the inside of the Teen Center 

● Repairs and Maintenance - General repairs - 

● Supplies  

● Fertilizer 

● Morris Monument 

● Tree Trimming 

● Filtration 

● Poulos Park - sprinklers 

● Town Park - peony beds, E - Hanson Smith Center and Playground 

● Football field - top dressing and uprights - Paonia High School contributed $9,000 

● Memorial Wall - is still in debt to the Town of Paonia Parks Budget 

● Apple Valley Park - Hill stabilization, walking bridge and finish the path 

● Lees Park - curbing and irrigation 

 

Discussion ensued regarding account number 16-1-46-70-line item capital outlay. 

Discussion Points: 

● Grant Match - $10,000 - $5,300 GOCO grant match - Evan Bolt 

● Tree Board - sick tree day and cost of the website 

● DOLA - Asset Inventory 

 

Discussion regarding general fund - no discussion on page 11 discussion continued on page 12. 

 

Discussion Points: 

● Clark must be finished by the end of 2019 

● Pan American bridge is in poor condition 

 

Discussion regarding general fund - Bridge page 14 

 

Discussion Points: 

● Samuel Wade bridge – Money is in a designated fund for Samuel Wade Bridge. 

 

Discussion regarding general fund – Sidewalk page 15 

 

Discussion Points: 

● Sidewalk revenue – only existing sidewalks  

● Alley crossing – will be repaired 2019 

● Public Works – Focused on handicap sidewalks in 2018 

 

Finance Officer Cindy Jones stated sidewalk monies not used in 2019 will roll over to 2020. 

Administrator Corinne Ferguson added that the sidewalk fee has a sunset clause at 10 years and can be 

renewed by the Board. 

 

Discussion ensued regarding the pass-through grant fund on page 17.  

 

Discussion ensued regarding the conservation trust fund on page 19, which includes a replacement of the 

sandbox. 

 

Discussion ensued regarding the 2ML tank lining. It is 13 years old and needs to be relined in the near 

future. 

 

Discussion Points: 

● Increase – does not help with the lining cost of the 2ML tank 

● Increase – loss of water tap sales 

● Staff concerns - not a state concerns at this point 

43

2.



 

 

  

OCTOBER 22, 2019 SPECIAL TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 3 

 

Discussion ensued by Mayor Stewart to set another special meeting to keep discussing the 2020 budget 

and discuss the rate increase. 

 

Motion to set a special meeting for November 04, 2019 at 5 pm to discuss the 2020 budget. 

Motion by Trustee Bear seconded by Trustee Budinger. Voting Yay: Trustee Bear, Trustee Budinger. 

Trustee Knutson. 

 

Public comment: 

Janice Chesnick – Foothills Water Company asked if the water companies could see the information 

about water and sewer rates. 

 

Motion to release information to water companies. 

Motion by Trustee Bear seconded by Trustee Budinger. 

 

Motion to modify main motion to release projected water and sewer tap raise information to the water 

companies. Motion by Trustee Bear seconded by Trustee Knutson. Voting Yay:  Trustee Bear, Trustee 

Budinger. Trustee Knutson. 

 

Adjournment 

  
Motion to adjourn the meeting. Motion made by Trustee Bear seconded by Trustee Knutson. Voting yay: 

Trustee Bear, Trustee Budinger. Trustee Knutson. 

         

 

Meeting adjourned at 6:28 pm.  

 

 

 

_______________________________  ______________________________ 

Amanda Mojarro, Deputy Clerk                          Charles Stewart, Mayor  

44

2.



 

 

  

OCTOBER 22, 2019 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 1 

 

Minutes 

Regular Town Board Meeting 

Town of Paonia, Colorado 

October 22, 2019 
 

  

 

RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 

 

Roll Call 
1. Roll Call 

 PRESENT 

Mayor Charles Stewart 

Trustee William Bear 

Trustee Karen Budinger 

      Trustee Dave Knutson 

 

ABSENT 

Mayor Pro-Tem Chelsea Bookout 

Trustee Mary Bachran 

 

The Regular Town Board Meeting held Tuesday, October 22, 2019, was called to order at 6:37 

PM by Mayor Charles Stewart followed by the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

Approval of Agenda 
2. Agenda Approval 

      

Motion to approve the agenda as presented. 

Motion made by Trustee Bear, Seconded by Trustee Knutson. 

Voting Yea: Trustee Knutson, Trustee Bear, Trustee Budinger. 

 

Announcements 
3.  Trustee Knutson 

● North Fork senior connections service day for raking leaves November 02, 2019. 

Recognition of Visitors & Guests 

1. Thomas Markle - requested a copy of the proposed 2020 budget. Mr. Markle questioned 

if the proposed water moratorium was adopted can changes be made by the Board. Mayor 

Stewart stated the board cannot make changes to the proposed adopted water moratorium 

immediately after it was to pass. 

 

 Bill Brunner - requested the proposed 2020 budget be posted as a spreadsheet on the 

Town of Paonia website. Mayor Stewart stated it will be posted as a PDF on the town 

website. 

  

 Mr. Hirschfeld stated that the Town of Paonia entrance to town sign had no lighting. 

Town Administrator Ferguson stated that she would contact the creative coalition 

regarding the light issue, as they own the sign. 

 

 Motion to post to the Town of Paonia website the proposed 2020 budget as a PDF. 

 Motion made by Trustee Knutson, seconded by Trustee Bear. Voting Yay: Trustee Bear, 

Trustee Knutson, Trustee Budinger. 

 

 

 

Consent Agenda 

4. Regular Minutes: October 08, 2019 

 Special Minutes: October 08, 2019 

 Kid's Pasta Project – Edesia Kitchen– Special Event Permit 10/28/19, 11/04/19, 11/11/19 

and 11/18/19. 

45

2.



 

 

  

OCTOBER 22, 2019 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 2 

 

 
 

 

 

Motion to approve consent agenda. 

Motion made by Trustee Knutson seconded Trustee Bear. Voting Yea: Trustee Budinger, 

Trustee Bear, Trustee Knutson. 

 

Mayor’s Report 
5. Mayor’s Report 

 Nothing to report. 

 

Staff Reports 
6. Interim Administrators Report: 

● Asset inventory published. 

● Submitted a grant request to DOLA - 50/50 infrastructure 

● Meet with Trustee Knutson regarding the building code and zoning code 

● Deadline to submit letters for trustee vacancy seat - October 21, 2019 

● Tree board seat vacancy - to be announced at a later date 
 

 

7. Public Works 

● Paving - overlays finishing October 23, 2019. 

● Poulos Park sidewalk pouring October 23, 2019. 

● Leaf vac will begin next week. 

● Scheduling town park tree trimming. 

 

 

8. Police Report 

● Busy and has not slowed down. 

● Secure Greenhouses  

  Police blotter was included in the packet 

 

9. Treasurer’s Report 

● Reviewed payroll and disbursements 

Disbursements 
10. Disbursements 

 Motion to approve disbursements as presented and discussed. 

Motion made by Trustee Budinger, Seconded by Trustee Bear. 

Voting Yea: Trustee Bear, Trustee Knutson, Trustee Budinger. 

 

 Unfinished Business 

11. Resolution 1029-14 Great Outdoors Colorado Grant Support - Poulos Park 

A summary and an updated resolution were provided in the packet. Interim Administrator 

stated no funds will need to be allocated for the project. 

 

Motion to adopt the Resolution 1029-14 Great Outdoors Colorado Grant Support - Poulos 

 Park. Motion made by Trustee Bear seconded by Trustee Budinger. Voting Yay: Trustee 

 Bear, Trustee Knutson, Trustee Budinger. 

 

 

12. Resolution 2019-15 - Ballot Language 

 A summary and the resolution 2019-15 - ballot language for the citizen initiative sent to 

the special election was provided in the packet. 

 Attorney Nerlin stated he spoke with Brunner and has no issues regarding the board 

setting the ballot question as presented.  

46

2.



 

 

  

OCTOBER 22, 2019 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 3 

 

Motion to adopt Resolution 2019-15 - Ballot Language. 

      Motion made by Trustee Bear seconded by Trustee Knutson. 

      Voting Yea: Trustee Knutson, Trustee Budinger, Trustee Bear. 

   

13. Resolution 2019-16 Special Election 

 A summary and a copy of the resolution 2019-16 special election were presented in the 

packet to the board. Trustee Knutson encourages the public vote. 

 

Motion to adopt Resolution 2019-16 Special Election 

      Motion made by Trustee Knustion seconded by Trustee Budinger. Voting Yay: Trustee      

 Knutson, Trustee Bear, Trustee Budinger. 

 

       14. Acceptance of the Intergovernmental Agreement with Delta County - Special Election 

 A summary and a copy of the intergovernmental agreement were in the packet. 

 

 Motion to approve the Acceptance of the Intergovernmental Agreement with Delta 

 County - Special Election. Motion made by Trustee Bear seconded by Trustee Budinger. 

 Voting Yay: Trustee Bear, Trustee Budinger, Trustee Knutson. 

 

Committee Reports 
 

17. Finance & Personnel 

Nothing to report.  
 

18. Public Works-Utilities-Facilities 

       Nothing to report. 

 

19. Governmental Affairs & Public Safety 

                  Nothing to report. 

 

      20. Space 2 Create 

 Meeting on October 23, 2019. 

 

21. Tree Board 

 Nothing to report. 

Adjournment 
Motion to adjourn. 

Motion made by Trustee Bear, Seconded by Trustee Budinger. 

Voting Yea:  Trustee Knutson, Trustee Bear, Trustee Budinger. 

Adjourned at: 7:07 pm 

  

 

_______________________________  ______________________________ 

Amanda Mojarro, Deputy Clerk                          Charles Stewart, Mayor  

47

2.



 

 

  

NOVEMBER 04, 2019 SPECIAL TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 1 

 

Minutes 

Special Town Board Meeting 

Town of Paonia, Colorado 

November 04, 2019 

  

 

RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 

The Special Meeting of the Town Board of Trustees held Tuesday, November 04, 2019, was 

called to order at 5:03 PM by Mayor Charles Stewart, followed by the Pledge of Allegiance.  

Roll Call 
1. Roll Call 

Trustees present were as follows: 

 
Mayor Charles Stewart 

Trustee William Bear 

Trustee Dave Knutson 

Trustee Mary Bachran 

 

ABSENT 

Mayor Pro-Tem Chelsea Bookout 

Trustee Karen Budinger 
 

Approval of Agenda 
 

1. Approval of Agenda 

 

 Motion made to approve the agenda as presented. 

 Motion made by Trustee Bear, Seconded by Trustee Knutson. 
Voting Yea: Trustee Bear, Trustee Bachran, Trustee Knutson 

 

Unfinished Business 

1. Special Meeting – Continued Budget 2020 

 

Mayor Stewart started the meeting by discussing the sixth scheduled budget 2020 

meeting. A copy of the draft Ordinance 2019-12 sewer rates, Resolution 2019-17 

amending garbage rates and charges and Resolution 2019-18 water rates and charges 

were included in the packet. 

 

Discussion Points: 

● Increase on the citizens initiative – no increase  

● Water taps sold - $59,000 

● Engineer – contract split between water only 

● Increase $63,665.40 – base rate 

● Cost of supplies – continues to increase 

● Insurance – statewide increase 

● Grant match for asset inventory study. 

 

Discussion ensued regarding the water fund reserve. 

 Discussion Points: 

 Debt reserve – a 3-month requirement 

 10% debt reserve – water built into water power authority 

 Unassigned fund balance  

 Increase – infrastructure and fund projects 

 

 

 

48

2.



 

 

  

NOVEMBER 04, 2019 SPECIAL TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 2 

 

Discussion ensued regarding sewer fund. 

 

Discussion points: 

 Purchase of sewer tap without a water tap 

 Repairs and Maintenance – sewer river line repair. 

 Auto trash cleaner – sewer ponds currently is cleaned manually 

 Sewer extinction – 133 loop – project funding and matching funds 

 

Discussion ensued by Interim Administrator Corinne Ferguson regarding multiple places run off of septic 

systems. If the places with septic systems fail, it is required to get on the town’s sewer line. 

 

Discussion ensued regarding sewer fund reserves, Finance officer Jones stated our requirement 

for the reserves is above requirement, in addition, there is not enough for grant funding 

for capital projects. 

  

Discussion ensued regarding trash reserves. 

 

Discussion Points: 

● Trash truck – a large part of the reserves went to the purchase of the truck. 

● Rate increase – trash truck maintenance and repair and spring clean. 

 

Discussion ensued by Interim Administrator Corinne Ferguson about the new water tier rates. Document 

of the rates were presented to the board members.  

 

Discussion Points: 

● 2020 water usage rate – new recommended tiers 

● Water conservation 

● Low water users 

● Base rate increase – funds the infrastructure 

● Water tiers – fund the usage 

● Research other communities’ water, sewer, and trash rates 

 

Town Treasurer King recommended the board of trustees increase the rates without regard to what other 

communities’ water, sewer and trash rate are. 

 

Public comment: 

Christine Patterson spoke about what Town of Hotchkiss and Town of Cedaredge charge. 

 

A representative from Foothills water company concerned with water tap moratorium on how it is 

budgeted and the cost of testing that is mandated by the state. 

 

Mayor Stewart stated that the water tap moratorium is budgeted in the assumption of it passing at the 

special election in January 2020. The budget is submitted to the state by the end of the year.  

 

Discussion ensued by Trustee Knuston regarding forming a water district with the water companies. 

 

Discussion ensued by Mayor Stewart the possibility of water companies to consolidate to form a water 

district of their own. 

 

Discussion ensued Trustee Bear regarding sewer plant and would like for Public Works Director to be 

present for questions on the matter. 

 

 

 

 

 

49

2.



 

 

  

NOVEMBER 04, 2019 SPECIAL TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 3 

 

 

 

Adjournment 

1. Adjournment 

  
Motion to adjourn the meeting. Motion made by Trustee Bear seconded by Trustee Bachran. Voting yay: 

Trustee Bear, Trustee Bachran. Trustee Knuston. 

        Meeting adjourned at 6:45 pm.  

 

 

 

_______________________________  ______________________________ 

Amanda Mojarro, Deputy Clerk                          Charles Stewart, Mayor  

50

2.



51

2.



52

2.



 

November 6, 2019 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Mayor’s Report 

Summary:   

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: VACANT: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

53

3.



 

November 5, 2019 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Proclamation – Hospice Month 

Summary:   

November – Hospice Month 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Vacant Seat Trustee Budinger: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

54

4.



55

4.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P R O C L A M A T I O N 

 
WHEREAS, 

For more than 25 years, HopeWest has been Paonia’s community-owned, nonprofit 

organization where people turn when facing life’s most difficult times; and 

 

WHEREAS, 

As a nationally recognized hospice, palliative care, adult bereavement, and children’s 

bereavement program, HopeWest provides care to more than 2,000 individuals each 

year. With every year, the need for HopeWest services are growing; and 

 

WHEREAS, 

Every citizen can play a role in helping your neighbors by supporting the mission of 

HopeWest through volunteer service and gifts; and 

 

WHEREAS, 

This public declaration celebrates our community’s unique spirit of helping each other 

every day and honors the compassion of the many nursing assistants, social workers, 

chaplains, physicians, counselors, registered nurses, and volunteers at HopeWest; and 

WHEREAS, 

Hospice and Palliative Care Month presents a unique opportunity to increase awareness 

of these programs and honor all who make them possible. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, I, Charles Stewart, by the power vested in me as Mayor of the Town of 

Paonia, do hereby proclaim November 2019 as  

 

"HOSPICE AND PALLIATIVE CARE MONTH" 
 

in the Town of Paonia and ask that the Town Board of Trustees encourage the support and 

participation of friends, neighbors, colleagues and fellow citizens in hospice activities and 

programs now and throughout the year. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and caused  

to be affixed the official Seal of the Town of Paonia this 12th  

day of November 2019. 
 

 

    _______________________________________  

    Charles Stewart, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 
_______________________________________ 
J. Corinne Ferguson, Town Clerk 

 

Paonia 
State of Colorado 

56

4.



 

November 6, 2019 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 

Administrator’s Report 

Public Works 

Police Report 

Summary:   

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: VACANT: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

57

5.



   
 

1 
 

Master Plan Community Survey #1 Results: 
Housing and Utilities 

 
The consensus from the community during the first public input meeting was that there are limited 
housing options in Paonia. Housing stock diversity promotes social equity and engages communities by 
enabling residents from a wide range of economic levels, household sizes, and age groups to live in a 
community. According to Census Bureau data, the majority of Paonia’s housing stock is single-family 
homes and there are 53 apartment units and 25 mobile homes within town limits. Residents were asked to 
consider the current housing stock in Paonia and identify the need for different housing types. Results 
indicate that senior living housing is the most needed in Paonia. The survey results also suggest a need for 
more single-family housing, apartments, duplexes, and accessory dwelling units. Respondents did not 
express as strong of a need for townhomes/condominiums and indicated no need, on average, for 
additional mobile homes. 

 

 
The quality of housing in Paonia was regarded as fair by the majority, 57.01%, of respondents. Multiple 
respondents commented that enforcing the existing codes/ordinances would positively impact the quality 
and appearance of homes in Paonia. Other comments pointed to absentee owners and renters not 
maintaining properties adequately.  

 

 
Nearly 90% of respondents indicated that housing affordability in Paonia is changing for the worse. 
Roughly 78% believed that availability was getting worse, while 55% of respondents viewed the quality 
of housing remaining about the same. A few respondents expressed that the cost of living, specifically 
housing, is increasing in Paonia without accompanied growth in economic opportunities for existing 
residents. 

Have Too Much Have Enough Need More Not Sure Average
Duplexes 5 22 49 31 2.58
Mobile Homes 29 48 14 16 1.84
Apartments 4 25 64 14 2.65
Townhomes/Condominiums 5 29 39 34 2.47
Single-Family Housing 2 31 60 14 2.62
Senior Living Housing 3 23 63 18 2.67
Accessory Dwelling Units 6 14 42 45 2.58

1. Please share your opinion about the amount of various types of housing the Paonia area

Excellent 0.93% 1
Good 27.10% 29
Fair 57.01% 61
Poor 14.95% 16

Responses
2. What is the overall quality of housing in Paonia?

Getting Much 
Better

Getting Somewhat 
Better

Remaining 
About the Same

Getting Somewhat 
Worse

Getting Much 
Worse Average

Affordability 0 1 10 54 42 4.28
Availability 0 2 22 52 31 4.05
Quality 5 15 59 21 7 3.09

3. How are the following aspects of housing changing in Paonia?

58

5.



   
 

2 

Master Plan Community Survey #1 Results: 
Housing and Utilities 

 

 
Almost half of the respondents considered housing cost/affordability as the top priority to improve the 
current housing issues in Paonia. More than a quarter of respondents expressed that diversifying the 
housing stock would benefit housing the most. Housing quality ranked last with less than a quarter of 
respondents viewing this aspect of housing as the main priority.  

 

 
The Census Bureau estimated the homeownership rate of Paonia at 70.0% for 2017. Respondents to this 
survey demonstrated a higher homeownership rate at 80.37%.  
 

 
The living situations varied between respondents. Nearly 74% of respondents lived without children and 
24% lived with children in the household. The results from this survey estimate an average of 2.10 
persons per household, which is consistent with Census Bureau data regarding persons per household, 
2.15 in 2017. 
 
 

Housing Quality 23.36% 25
Housing Types 27.10% 29
Housing Cost/Affordability 49.53% 53

Response

4. Which of the following aspects of housing will improve the 
Paonia area the most?

5. Do you own or rent the property you currently reside at in Paonia?

Own 80.37% 86
Rent 12.15% 13
I do not live in Paonia 7.48% 8

Responses

Single Adult 25.23% 27
Two Adults, No Kids 44.86% 48
Single Parent with Kid(s) 2.80% 3
Two Parents with Kid(s) 21.50% 23
Multiple Persons, No Kids 3.74% 4
Other 1.87% 2

Responses

6. Which option below describes the current living situation in your 
household.

59

5.



   
 

3 

Master Plan Community Survey #1 Results: 
Housing and Utilities 

 
Two-thirds of respondents live within the town limits of Paonia. All respondents, except for one, lived in 
town limits or within three miles of town limits. 
 

 
Survey results for length of residency were evenly split between individuals living in Paonia for 1 to 5 
years and more than 20 years, both at 30.84%. Most of the remaining 38% were individuals who have 
lived in Paonia for 6 to 10 years and 11 to 20 years, about 33% combined. 

 

 
The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) measures affordability and housing 
cost burden by the 30% rule of thumb. A cost-burdened family or household is one that pays more than 
30% of its household income towards housing costs. Roughly 56% of survey respondents, according to 
this definition, are considered cost-burdened. This results in difficulties for residents to afford other 
necessities such as food, clothing, transportation, and medical care.   

 
 
 

Within Paonia Town Limits 66.36% 71
Within 3 Miles of Paonia Limits 32.71% 35
Within Delta County 0.93% 1
Within Colorado 0.00% 0
None of the Above 0.00% 0

Responses
7. Where do you reside?

Less than 1 Year 4.67% 5
1 to 5 Years 30.84% 33
6 to 10 Years 11.21% 12
11 to 20 Years 21.50% 23
More than 20 Years 30.84% 33
I Used to Live in Paonia 0.00% 0
I Have Never Lived in Paonia 0.93% 1

8. How long have you lived in Paonia?
Responses

Yes 56.07% 60
No 43.93% 47

9. Do housing costs, including utilities, account for more than 30% of 
your household's income?

Responses

60

5.



   
 

4 

Master Plan Community Survey #1 Results: 
Housing and Utilities 

 
Please refer to the next page to see additional comments/questions for the 2020 water-system analysis. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

What caused the water crisis in 
February 2019? 49.53% 53
How does Paonia prevent this 
from occurring in the future? 69.16% 74
How many more people and 
what type of activities can the 
system support? 85.05% 91
Other (Please see comments) 32.71% 35

10. A water-system analysis is scheduled for 2020, what questions 
do you want answered?

Responses

61

5.



   
 

5 

Master Plan Community Survey #1 Results: 
Housing and Utilities 

11. Suggestions/comments for the water-system analysis scheduled for 2020: 
How can we improve our response to similar situations in the future? How will we acquire funding to fix the infrastructure 
currently? What affects does the change in agriculture and mini homes have on water use and how can we best track and 
regulate this. 
Will the out of town water companies ever be offered an integrated contract? Will the out of town water companies ever 
get a voice/vote about decisions impacting our water supply? 
Should a moratorium be placed on water tap sales? 
Cost-benefit analysis for a separate water board/water co-op; expected end-of-useful-life for all town-maintained sections 
of the water system; review of utility rate structure and consideration of alternatives. 
Should we raise the cost of water to encourage wise usage? 
Will extra storage of water be considered compared to the existing situation? 
How much water does the Town of Paonia produce? 
I think there is a limit to how many more people can be supported by the water system. Part of the water crisis was caused 
by faulty infrastructure, but part was caused by the springs not putting out enough water to refill the fixed tank, due to just 
1 year of low snow-pack. We don't know if we will always have adequate snow. 
How are tap sales to be managed in the planning period? 
Harnessing of spring waters, safer and more efficient. More storage to anticipate for growth. 
Can we please answer: 1. What can the town do to encourage and promote water conservation with the reduction of 
consumption (I believe we can change the water pricing schemes to influence behavior, and to get adequate funding to 
change to low flow fixtures and appliances for those interested)? 2. What can the town do with new housing developments 
that incorporate conservation, rain catchment/treatment to supplement future drought and supply issues and encourage a 
bit more water independence? 
Who determines the granting of a new water tap? Does the greater community have any input? 
What also happened in 2018 and 2017, and all the way back to 2005? Why is our water and trash so much more expensive 
than other towns/counties? Do we have someone who knows how to measure use and pH levels? 
How do you/can you/will you per a moratorium on any new residential/commercial water users? If the system can support 
additional housing, it seems it would be beneficial to provide more housing. 
Listing of all ancillary water districts that are served by Paonia and their relative conditions. 
Why is there still turbidity in the water since the water crisis Feb 2019? 
How will the town supply 500 outstanding taps if called? 
The water analyses need to determine what the Town's water rights are, then the Town can allocate uses within the Town 
(residential, commercial, etc.) 
Also need to have a drought management plan for future dry years. 
How will the infrastructure be upgraded and maintained (i.e. aging pipes)? 
How can we conserve water in our homes? 
How do out-of-town taps get determined and released for sale? 
How do we deal with the Arch water taps? 
How many more taps can the water system support? 
Why did the Town start saying it is the property owner's responsibility to have a pressure regulator? 
Why do we continue to get sampling violations? Why are we just getting up to speed on backflow prevention? 
How will fracking potentially affect our water quality? 
How can we provide more raw water storage? 
Why is water so expensive here? Twice as much as Surface Creek, etc. 
Is the current infrastructure sufficient to continue to support current users? 

 
 

62

5.



   
 

6 

Master Plan Community Survey #1 Results: 
Housing and Utilities 

 
Nearly three-quarters of respondents were supportive of the Town forming a Water Board to oversee the 
water system and serve in an advisory role for water-related decisions. Additional comments encouraged 
water companies, connected to the Town’s water infrastructure, be represented in the Water Board.  
 

 
A large proportion of survey respondents, about 72%, rated the Town’s water quality as good or 
excellent. Comments regarding the water provided reasoning as to why respondents rated the water 
quality as fair, 23.36%, or poor, 4.67%. Factors that negatively impacted the Town’s water quality rating 
included concerns stemming from the water crisis in February 2019, too much chlorine, turbidity, and 
excessive water pressure. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Very Supportive 40.19% 43
Supportive 33.64% 36
Neutral 12.15% 13
Unsupportive 7.48% 8
Very Unsupportive 6.54% 7

12. Do you support the Town establishing a Water Board, consisting 
of professionals and experts, to provide guidance on water related 

decisions and help monitor the water system?
Responses

Excellent 25.23% 27
Good 46.73% 50
Fair 23.36% 25
Poor 4.67% 5

Responses
13. How would you rate the Town's water quality?

63

5.



   
 

7 

Master Plan Community Survey #1 Results: 
Housing and Utilities 

 
The current water usage rates charge users the same amount per thousand gallons from 1 gallon to 10,000 
gallons. A table of the current rate structure for residential in-town customers is below:  

 
The current tiers within the rate structure do not provide an incentive for water consumption to be less 
than 10,000 gallons per month. A majority, 61.68%, of respondents were interested or very interested in 
an incentive for water conservancy, while 15.89% were uninterested or very uninterested. On November 
4th, the Board of Trustees reviewed the following usage rate structure: 

 
The Board will be considering these rate changes during its public hearing on November 26th, 2019.  

Very Interested 32.71% 35
Interested 28.97% 31
Neutral 22.43% 24
Uninterested 9.35% 10
Very Uninterested 6.54% 7

Responses

14. Would you be interested in the Town considering a program 
incentivizing water conservancy?

Tier Rate Gallons per Tier Consumption per Level Revenue
1 0.00180 1 to 10,000 9,188,146 $16,538.66
2 0.00205 10,001 to 20,000 7,226,880 $14,815.10
3 0.00360 20,001 to 30,000 5,561,152 $20,020.15
4 0.00460 30,001 to 100,000 13,338,108 $61,355.30
5 0.00560 More than 100,001 2,712,996 $15,192.78

Totals Base Customers 38,027,281 $127,921.99

2019 Water Usage Rates
Town of Paonia

Residential In-Town Water Rates

Notes: Calculated from 2019 YTD Water Usage Data

Tier Rate Gallons per Tier Consumption per Level Revenue
1 0.0012 1 to 1,000 1,017,156 $1,220.59
2 0.0014 1,001 to 3,000 1,955,904 $2,738.27
3 0.0016 3,001 to 5,000 1,845,166 $2,952.26
4 0.0018 5,001 to 10,000 4,369,920 $7,865.86
5 0.0022 10,001 to 15,000 3,857,760 $8,487.07
6 0.0027 15,001 to 20,000 3,369,120 $9,096.62
7 0.0032 20,001 to 30,000 5,561,152 $17,795.69
8 0.0038 30,001 to 40,000 4,110,108 $15,618.41
9 0.0044 40,001 to 50,000 2,864,772 $12,605.00

10 0.005 50,001 to 75,000 4,209,852 $21,049.26
11 0.006 75,001 to 100,000 2,153,376 $12,920.26
12 0.0065 More than 100,001 2,712,996 $17,634.47

38,027,281 $129,983.75
38,027,281 $127,921.99

0 $2,061.77

2020 Water Usage Rates
Town of Paonia

Residential In-Town Water Rates

Notes: Calculated from 2019 YTD Water Usage Data

2020 Totals
2019 Totals

D

64

5.



   
 

8 

Master Plan Community Survey #1 Results: 
Housing and Utilities 

 
On average, respondents were satisfied with all utilities provided by the Town of Paonia. Sewer service 
received the highest rate of satisfaction, followed by sanitation services. The Town’s water service ranked 
last among the three utilities, with around 30% of respondents being either dissatisfied or very dissatisfied 
with the Town’s water provision. The Town understands the concerns from residents regarding the water 
system infrastructure and the Town is actively seeking grants to assist in analyzing and improving the 
current infrastructure. The Town is also in the process of writing grants for an asset inventory analysis in 
order to prioritize areas of need in the Master Plan, create a Capital Improvement Plan, and be more 
competitive in receiving grant funding for much needed projects (roads, infrastructure, etc.).  
 

 
Around 81% of respondents recycle to some degree, and 45.79% of respondents recycle more than 30% 
of their household trash.  
 

 
The Delta County Transfer Station in Hotchkiss allows Paonia residents to drop-off recyclable goods 
without a fee. Burns Recycling and Rice Recycling currently provide curbside recycling service to 
residents around the Paonia area. The Board of Trustees may discuss possibilities of a curbside recycling 
program in Paonia at some point in the future. 

Very Satisfied Satisfied Unsatisfied Very Unsatisfied Not a Customer Average
Water 14 55 26 6 6 2.24
Sewer 22 60 5 2 18 1.85
Sanitation 22 54 8 3 20 1.91

15. How satisfied are you with the utilities provided by the Town?

0% 16.82% 18
1% to 10% 15.89% 17
11% to 30% 19.63% 21
More than 30% 45.79% 49
Not Sure 1.87% 2

Responses

16. What percentage of your household's trash, by volume, do you 
estimate that you are recycling on a monthly basis?

Never 29.91% 32
Every Few Months 18.69% 20
About Once a Month 30.84% 33
About Every Other Week 14.02% 15
Almost Every Week 6.54% 7

Responses

17. On average, how often do you visit the recycling drop-off center 
at the Delta County Transfer Station in Hotchkiss?

65

5.



   
 

9 

Master Plan Community Survey #1 Results: 
Housing and Utilities 

 
The Town appreciates and values all input received for this survey. The Town will need to better engage 
individuals ranging from 18 to 44 years old in the next three surveys to have a more representative sample 
of Paonia’s demographics. The Census Bureau’s population estimate for persons 65 years and over for 
Paonia was 22.4% in 2018, 42% of survey respondents were in this age category. 
 

19. Please provide any additional comments on housing or utilities: 
The street appearance of housing Paonia is not good. There are too many examples of weeds growing unabated, trash and 
debris in the yards, and grass that is not mowed or watered. A big step in rectifying this would be for the town to enforce 
existing weed policies, as well as monitor trash and junk piled in view of the public. This is not a request for pristine yards, 
but a request for maintained yards and houses. 
While housing appearance, upkeep and utility functionality are important, the town needs to also focus on its roads and 
sidewalks. I understand that the water/sewer infrastructure is closely related to these two things, but is there a 10-15 year 
plan that can address how to update both the infrastructure and roads/sidewalks in iterative processes? We have all been 
paying a $3 sidewalk fee for the last few years and I have only seen updating take place last year, but none this year. 
I think there is a potential crisis ahead of us outside of city limits where there is no building code and folks are erecting 
dwellings to live in without the utility infrastructure to support this. Some people are living in structures with no sewer, 
running water and only have electricity through extension cords from the main dwelling. 
"Affordable housing" often turns into transient housing. Use existing units available before building new. Decide who bears 
the most infrastructure cost--in or out of town people 
Apartments/Condos use less water than single family homes! 
I could not afford to buy in Paonia if I were to move here today. 
Housing: I would strongly support allowing accessory dwelling units in R-1. Utilities: Being able to opt out of trash service 
and/or have recycling picked up in town would be a big plus for sanitation services. 
I would recycle if it were convenient. 
We need more stores to come in for jobs in Paonia. More work adds more income into town. 
I'm concerned about offering any water taps until it is determined how to evaluate and remedy our current water issues. 
Thanks for the survey. 
Property taxes are rising, but economic opportunity is not. That is why my house is for sale. 
I feel the way to enhance a vibrant downtown is for housing of all sorts to infill the immediate 3 blocks around downtown. 
Then the population in that area supports the businesses. 
Raise the water rates. The first 5000 gallons should be affordable then double the cost after that. Watering your lawn with 
treated water should be expensive. Housing is hard to find here and that’s just the way it is. We do not need to make room 
for every person who wants to move here. 
With Airbnb, etc. many local residences are not available to working people in our community - this with increasing rents 
and low wages will get far worse as time moves forward. Best solution at this time is to allow the building of smaller 
accessory dwellings on all lots, used only as long-term rentals. 

Under 18 0.00% 0
18 to 24 0.93% 1
25 to 34 8.41% 9
35 to 44 14.95% 16
45 to 54 14.02% 15
55 to 64 19.63% 21
65 and Over 42.06% 45

18. Which category below indicates your age?
Responses

66

5.



   
 

10 

Master Plan Community Survey #1 Results: 
Housing and Utilities 

The water quality used to be way better, way too much chlorine today. Town already provides incentives for conservation 
through tiered water rates. 
Code enforcement is not being done - the Town has plenty of ordinances. They are just not being enforced. This causes the 
town to have a dumpy, trashy appearance that discourages economic development and is unsafe and inconvenient for 
residents. 
I would prefer to limit or eliminate the sale of new water taps, rather than keep selling them and maybe get to the point 
where people who already have water taps can't water shrubs or gardens, or have to limit showers, etc. It's not fair to the 
people who are here now. 
What used to be a trailer park behind Redwood Arms would be a great place for a tiny house community. We do not need 
more houses in town. We don't need to destroy the atmosphere or feel of our small town. 
I would like to see a recycling program. 
We need curbside recycling. 
It would be nice for the town to be a dark sky community and to drop night lighting as much as feasible. Thanks for creating 
the survey and taking the time for us all! 
Market rate rent is causing local working-class residents and their adult children to move away and inviting millionaires to 
take over this town. 
Housing is poor due to too many renters and too many absent owners, need more full-time residency. Most of residents 
have to buy our water from stores or filter it due to the quality of water. The Town should have a recycle truck. 
Please consider balance, harmony, continuity, unity, proportion gradation, and beauty before planning housing 
development within town limits. I am concerned (being on a very limited income) about increased utility costs from the 
Town. 
I save recycling up for a "big" drop-off every couple of months. 
Mobile homes should be limited to mobile home parks 
Diverse, dense housing provides for a more diverse and secure population. The Board of Trustees needs to listen to their 
Planning Board and not have second and third public hearings after the Planning Board has already had them and has 
provided a recommendation. The Trustees need to tell the public to air their comments to the Planning Board and the 
Trustees should follow the recommendations of the Planning Board instead of ignoring them and doing additional hearings. 
Right now, the Trustees are wasting the public's and Planning Board's time by not providing clear leadership and a process. 
By allowing the public to derail a planning process by packing Trustee meetings, we have recently lost the opportunity 
multiple times to provide more diverse housing for our citizens. 
Paonia needs a recycling and composting program. 
The board should be formed from all users of the Town's water system. 
I don't use the recycling drop off center at the Hotchkiss Transfer Station because: 

1. It costs the county $30,000 per year. 
2. It is constantly contaminated with garbage because it's "free" to users. That's why costs the county. People dump 

their garbage in the recycling bins purposefully. I go to Double J Disposal in Austin, it's only $2 a load and it's clean 
and well-run. 

The cost of housing in the Valley has become prohibitive for renters and newcomers. The Airbnb trend has drastically 
reduced availability and increased cost. Possible solutions are to put a cap on the number of one-night rentals, and/or 
build more motels and RV parks for visitors. 

We need to promote more solar arrays for residents, businesses, and a community system. We also need more affordable 
housing for all ages. 
The water seemed better in 2014-2015 - LOTS of chlorine now. Gentrification is a buzz word. How to keep it affordable for 
folks who are here and want to stay here while improving services and securing water? 
It seems like there are a lot of people who have lived in Paonia locally far more than 3 years that are having trouble finding 
housing at all. People with families are having trouble finding affordable rentals. 
I find it sad how many locals (long-term) can no longer find or afford housing. There is a major disparity between income and 
availability. 
Need reasonable housing with a price not over $800 or $1,000 per month. Water and electric rates are getting high. 
Start regulating water pressure to reasonable limits. 

67

5.



   
 

11 

Master Plan Community Survey #1 Results: 
Housing and Utilities 

Taste-wise, the water quality is good. I have no analyses of safety parameters on current water. The Town is friendly and 
welcoming :) 
We have had numerous occasions when our pipes have burst, and the cause is obviously excessive water pressure. The 
Town required us to install a water pressure regulator, but the problem persists. We want the Town to regulate water 
pressure. 
If housing complexes are to be built, please consider the existing neighborhood and the ultimate impact like traffic, noise, 
dust, etc. Utility costs are rising to become unaffordable. Please keep fluoride out of our water. 
Would be wonderful if the Town of Paonia offered recycling pick-up. 
In my opinion, the passing of a water moratorium would essentially halt any type of housing development that is much 
needed in Paonia. The water crisis happened, the Town partnered with others to address it, and the Town is taking the 
necessary steps to ensure it does not happen again through a water system assessment. We in Paonia are more worried 
about a perceived lack of water than we are worried about the reality that people here cannot afford to live here due to an 
actual lack of housing that is available, affordable, and hasn’t been neglected for years on end. If we, as the community, 
want Paonia to prosper after the coal mines shut down and experience some type of growth, then we are going to have to 
attract new businesses or expand existing ones. The current situation does not allow for growth because there isn’t any 
place for additional workers to move, even if they are getting paid an adequate living wage.  
The water quality definitely has declined since I’ve moved here. I only recycle aluminum cans and I drop those off at Don’s 
Pride of ownership is lacking and has declined dramatically over the last 30 years.  

 

68

5.



1

Corinne Ferguson

From: Enlighten <donotreply@enphaseenergy.com>
Sent: Thursday, November 7, 2019 7:08 PM
Subject: Monthly Energy Production Report for Paonia Town Hall

Monthly Energy Production Report for Paonia Town Hall 
 

Enphase Energy maximizes your solar energy production and keeps you informed about your 

system. Your monthly energy report shows how your system performed and how much you 

contributed to offsetting the global carbon footprint.  

For more details on these production results, please visit your Enphase® system. 

 

Week Peak Power Energy Produced 

10/01/2019 - 10/07/2019 4.09 kW 211 kWh 

10/08/2019 - 10/14/2019 4.30 kW 204 kWh 

10/15/2019 - 10/21/2019 4.17 kW 145 kWh 

10/22/2019 - 10/28/2019 4.20 kW 152 kWh 

10/29/2019 - 10/31/2019 3.16 kW 21.7 kWh 

October 2019 Total: 733 kWh 

Previous Month Total: 847 kWh 

Year to Date: 7.05 MWh 
 

Your Carbon Offset for this month: 1,117 lbs 

You have offset the equivalent of: 13 Trees 

 
 

 

All trademarks are the property of their respective owners. 
©2008-2019 Enphase Energy, Inc. All rights reserved.  

This is an automated system notification from Enphase Energy Inc., 
1420 N. McDowell Blvd., Petaluma, CA 94954, USA.  

69

5.



2

To edit your notification preferences, please sign in to your Enlighten® account. 
Your privacy is important to us. Please review Enphase Energy's Privacy Policy.  
 

 

 

70

5.



 

November 6, 2019 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Treasurer’s Report 

Summary:   

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: VACANT Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

71

6.



 

November 6, 2019 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Disbursements 

Summary:   

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: VACANT Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

72

7.



 

November 5, 2019 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Paonia Streetlights - Update 

Summary:   

 

An update to the discussion regarding the updating of the Paonia streetlights either to the 

standard DMEA 4000k or Dark Skies approved 3000k led lights. 

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: VACANT Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

73

8.



 

November 8, 2019 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Great Outdoors Colorado – Parks, Recreation, and Trails Master Plan 

Summary:   

Acceptance of the GOCO grant contract and authorization for the Town Administrator, per 

Resolution 2018-12, to sign. 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Vacant Seat Trustee Budinger: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

74

9.



75

9.



76

9.



77

9.



78

9.



79

9.



80

9.



81

9.



82

9.



83

9.



84

9.



85

9.



86

9.



87

9.



88

9.



Resolution 2018-12 – GOCO-Park,Trails,Rec Master Plan – October 2018 - FINAL 
 

 TOWN OF PAONIA, COLORADO 

RESOLUTION 2018-12 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES FOR THE TOWN OF PAONIA, COLORADO - 

Supporting the Grant Application for a Planning Grant from the State Board of the Great Outdoors 

Colorado Trust Fund and the completion of a Parks, Recreation, and Trails Master Plan. 
 

WHEREAS, the Town of Paonia supports the Great Outdoors Colorado planning grant application for the 

Parks, Recreation, and Trails Master Plan. 
 

WHEREAS, the Town of Paonia has requested $75,000 from Great Outdoors Colorado for a Parks, Recreation, 

and Trails Master Plan. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES FOR THE TOWN OF 

PAONIA, COLORADO:  

Section 1: The Board of Trustees of the Town of Paonia strongly supports the application and has 

appropriated matching funds for a grant with Great Outdoors Colorado.  

 

Section 2:  If the grant is awarded, the Board of Trustees of the Town of Paonia strongly supports the 

completion of the project.  

 

Section 3:  The Board of Trustees of the Town of Paonia authorizes the expenditure of funds necessary to 

meet the terms and obligations of any Grant awarded.  

 

Section 4:  The project sites are owned by the Town of Paonia and will be owned by the Town of Paonia for 

the next 25 years. 

 

Section 5:  The Board of Trustees of the Town of Paonia recognizes that as the recipient of a Great Outdoors 

Colorado Local Government grant the project site must provide reasonable public access.  

 

Section 6: The Board of Trustees of the Town of Paonia will continue to maintain the Parks, Recreation, 

and trails areas in a high-quality condition and will appropriate funds for maintenance in its 

annual budget. 

 

Section 7:  If the grant is awarded, the Board of Trustees hereby authorizes Town Administrator to sign the 

grant agreement with Great Outdoors Colorado. 

 

Section 8:  This resolution shall become effective upon its adoption, October 9, 2018. 

     

 ___s/s_______________________________________ 

                                                  Charles Stewart, Mayor 

ATTEST:    

 ____s/s___________________________________      

J. Corinne Ferguson, Town Clerk  

89

9.



 

November 5, 2019 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Trustee Appointment – Letters of Interest 

Summary:   

 

Review and potential appointment to vacant trustee seat. 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Vacant Seat Trustee Budinger: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

90

10.



91

10.



 
 
October   12,   2019  
 
 
 
Dear   Mayor   Stewart   and   Board   of   Trustees,  
 
 
I   would   like   to   express   my   interest   in   joining   the   Town   of   Paonia   Board   of   Trustees.   Just   over   two   years   ago,  
my   husband   Thomas   and   I   visited   the   town   of   Paonia   and   immediately   fell   in   love   with   this   region   -   the   friendly  
people,   the   beautiful   landscape   and   abundance   of   local   agriculture,   the   unique   downtown   character,   and   the  
supportive   community.   I   was,   and   continue   to   be,   blown   away   by   the   energy   and   vibrancy   of   this   small   town.   
 
Over   the   past   two   years,   I’ve   had   an   opportunity   to   become   involved   in   the   community   in   a   number   of   ways.   My  
“day   job”   is   at   First   Colorado   National   Bank,   locally   owned   and   founded   in   Paonia   in   1903.   My   husband   and   I  
own   and   operate   The   Local   Nomad,   a   new   hostel   here   in   town.   I   also   volunteer   at   the   Paradise   Theater,   and  
briefly   served   on   the   board   of   Elsewhere   Studios.   As   you   know,   I   have   attended   most   town   meetings   over   the  
last   two   years   and   do   my   best   to   stay   informed   on   the   actions   of   the   board   and   plans   for   this   town’s   future.  
 
As   a   relative   new-comer   to   Paonia,   I   feel   that   my   first   job   in   town   meetings,   whether   as   a   citizen   or   board  
member,   is   to   listen   and   learn.   I   already   spend   a   fair   amount   of   time   reading   meeting   packets   and   researching  
the   topics   that   will   be   discussed,   and   as   a   board   member   I   would   expect   to   do   even   more   to   ensure   that   my  
participation   is   informed   and   thoughtful.   I   am   especially   passionate   about   the   protection   of   Paonia’s   natural  
resources   and   unique   character,   the   need   for   affordable   housing,   and   the   government’s   responsibility   for  
ethical   and   transparent   operations.  
 
I   have   enclosed   my   resume   to   provide   a   more   complete   picture   of   my   education   and   work   history.   I   believe   that  
my   experience,   skills,   and   commitment   make   me   an   excellent   candidate   for   the   board.   Thank   you   for   your  
consideration.  
 
 
Sincerely,  
 

 
Michelle   Pattison  
 

92

10.



 

Michelle   Pattison     
  

EXPERIENCE  
Owner,   The   Local   Nomad  
03/2018-present  

Seven   room   hostel   accommodating   up   to   15   guests   nightly.    Co-manage   all   aspects  
of   daily   operations   and   marketing.   

 
Assistant   Branch   Manager,   First   Colorado   National   Bank  
10/2017-present  

Maintain   a   personal   and   business   banking   portfolio   of   over   50   customers.    Supervise  
five   retail   team   members .   Manage   Paonia   branch    community   outreach   and   sales  
with   a   focus   on   business   and   complex   personal   accounts.   Sustain   and   support  
customer   relationships   through   the   account   lifecycle.   Contribute   to   the  
development   of   a   comprehensive   teller   manual .   Collaborate   with   the   regional  
manager   to    refine   and   develop   daily   processes    for   the   retail   team,   participate   in  
outreach   activities ,   and   contribute   to    marketing    strategies.   

 
Dazlious   LLC,   Owner  
08/09-present  

Oversee   three   rental   properties   in   North   Carolina.    Develop,   review,   and   enforce  
contracts    with   tenants   and   subcontractors.    Organize   and   maintain   business   and  
financial   records    and   supervise   property   manager.    

 
Seasonal   Hospitality   Management,   Lodging   and   Activities  
2015-2017  

Coastal,   mountain,   and   river   campgrounds   and   lodges   serving   up   to   12,000   guests  
seasonally.   Varied   roles   over   three   summer   seasons   with   a   focus   on    customer  
service   and   reservations .    Seasonal   responsibilities   include:    Manage   daily   schedules  
for   63   raft   guides.    Train   and   supervise    up   to   4   sta�   members   and   10   contractors.    Sell  
activites   and   packages    and    provide   concierge   services    for   lodge   guests   both   within  
the   resort   and   with   partner   vendors.   Develop   and   manage    social   media   and   website .  
Review    quality   control    of   guest   lodging.   

 
Northwestern   University,   Research   Administrator  
03/04-09/13  

Coordinate   and   edit    grant   submissions   for   federal   awards.   A llocate   and   oversee  
$2.5m/year   across   15   accounts.    Manage   travel,   listserv,   and   calendars    for   program  
directors.    Develop   and   disseminate    o�cial   communication,   presentations,   agendas,  
promotional   materials,   program   policies,   standard   procedures,   retention   programs,  
and   special   events.    Plan,   coordinate,   and   document    meetings   with   10-100+  
attendees.  

 
SKILLS   and  
QUALIFICATIONS  
Communication,  
customer   service,  
management,  
organization,   problem  
solving  
 
EDUCATION  
Western   Carolina  
University     08/2012  
Master   of   Business  
Administration  
 
Indiana   State  
University    05/2003  
Bachelor   of   Science,  
psychology  
 
Certifications:  
Advanced   Grant   Writing  
Certificate,   Western  
Kentucky   University  
 
MEMBERSHIPS   AND  
VOLUNTEERING  
Volunteer,   Paradise  
Theater  
2018-present  
Non-profit   community  
movie   theater.  
 
Board   Member,  
Elsewhere   Studios  
2018  
Non-profit   artist   residency  
program.   
 
Director,   TEDxKatuah  
2011-2012  
Supervise    a   team   of   20  
volunteers   to   produce   an  
event   with   100   attendees.  
Oversee   fundraising,  
budget,   marketing,  
speaker   and   audience  
curation,   and   event  
production.  
 
Board   Member,   Blue  
Ridge   Toastmasters   
2011-2012  
VP   of   Public   Relations,  
Editor,   Toastmasters  
International   District  
37   Newsletter  
 
 
 

93

10.



 

November 6, 2019 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Local Government Designee – Discussion of Possible Comments 

Regarding COGCC Mission Change 

Summary:   

Requested discussion from LGD Trustee Mary Bachran. 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Vacant Seat Trustee Budinger: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

94

11.



Proposed comments & suggestions: 
 
Page 8: Prefiling notice 

The operator must give notice of its intended development to various entities, including 
“the relevant local government.  However, this only occurs if the proposed drilling is in 
the jurisdiction of the local government.  I would request they broaden this to include 
any local government in the watershed or airshed of a proposed development or 
“downstream” of it. Prefiling notices would then come to the LGD in those communities 
(like Paonia).  I would encourage them to change the definition of “relevant local 
government” in the 100 series definitions to include those same parameters. 
 

Page 11: Rule 333 
Seismic operations.  Staff is considering changing the distance requirements and 
notification requirements.  I would propose that distance and notification requirements 
include proximity to irrigations ditches, reservoirs, dams and livestock operations. 
 

Pages 12 & 13: Rule 508 
This concerns a way for the local communities and governments to request a local 
public hearing.  I would propose that affected local government include thos in the 
airshed and watershed and downstream of them.  I would request the same for affected 
persons. 
 

Page 21: Rule 906 
This concerns the reporting of spills if they threaten “…waters of the state, a residence, 
livestock or a public byway.”  I would propose including agricultural water, local drinking 
water and it sources in this rule. 

95

11.



  

 

1120 Lincoln Street, Suite 801 
Denver, CO 80203 
 

M I S S I O N  C H A N G E  W H I T E P A P E R  

 

Date:  November 1, 2019 

On April 16, 2019, the Governor signed SB 19-181 into law. SB 19-181 amends the 

Oil and Gas Conservation Act (“Act”) and addresses the authority of local governments to 

regulate oil and gas operations. SB 19-181 ensures that the Colorado Oil and Gas 

Conservation Commission (“Commission” or “COGCC”) regulates oil and gas development 

and operations in Colorado in a manner that protects public health, safety, welfare, the 

environment, and wildlife resources. Specifically, SB 19-181 provides: 

the Commission shall regulate oil and gas operations in a 
reasonable manner to protect and minimize adverse impacts to 
public health, safety, and welfare, the environment, and wildlife 
resources and shall protect against adverse environmental 
impacts on any air, water, soil, or biological resource resulting 
from oil and gas operations. 

 
§ 34-60-106(2.5)(a), C.R.S. 
 

This mandate is a critical tenet of SB 19-181, one that requires realignment and reform of 

Commission Rules.  

This whitepaper was developed to provide stakeholders and the public with an outline 

and discussion of some of the larger concept rule changes that Commission staff is 

considering in the Mission Change rulemaking. The large concept ideas identified in this 

96

11.



Whitepaper   
November 1, 2019 
Page 2 

 

whitepaper are only some of the rule revisions staff is considering as part of Mission Change. 

Moreover, staff’s work on the Cumulative Impacts and Alternative Location Analysis 

rulemakings will necessarily influence and buttress the Mission Change rulemaking. 

Accordingly, this whitepaper does not identify or discuss all of the Mission Change rule 

revisions under consideration.  

 These large concepts are in addition to the removal of language that is inconsistent 

with SB 19-181. For instance, SB 19-181 directs that no longer is “cost-effectiveness and 

technical feasibility” to be applied when regulating oil and gas operations. Page 8, Senate 

Bill 19-181. Accordingly, “cost-effectiveness and technical feasibility” will be removed from 

the Commission’s rules. Further, under SB 19-181 the Commission is to “to protect and 

minimize adverse impacts to public health, safety, and welfare and the environment.” 

“Minimize adverse impacts” means, to the extent necessary and reasonable “to protect 

public health, safety, and welfare[,]” to “avoid adverse impacts[,]” and to “minimize and 

mitigate the extent and severity of those impacts that cannot be avoided.” § 34-60-

103(5.5)(b), C.R.S. Commission rules will be revised to implement this directive. 

 As outlined below, certain rule sets require a more robust review and redevelopment 

to align with the mandate of SB 19-181. Other rule sets, such as the 700 Series, will be 

addressed in separate rulemakings. This whitepaper discusses some of the large concept 

rule changes under consideration for each rule series, if applicable. 

This whitepaper is not the final word on the Mission Change rulemaking. While it 

was developed solely by staff, stakeholder input is critical to the next stage of staff’s rule 

language development. Staff expects this whitepaper to facilitate meaningful stakeholder 

97

11.



Whitepaper   
November 1, 2019 
Page 3 

 

conversations and rule language development. The topics staff expects to discuss with 

stakeholders include 1) potential limitations to implementing some of the large concept 

ideas in this whitepaper and 2) additional large conceptual reforms that should be 

considered. These stakeholder conversations will continue to provide COGCC staff with 

insight and information as it develops draft rules.  

The first stakeholder meeting is scheduled for Thursday, November 7th at 10:00 am. 

The Mission Change Rulemaking hearing is scheduled for February 26 and 27, 2020. Staff’s 

proposed draft rules will be made available well in advance of that hearing. Finally, the 

Commission continues to receive public comment to the Mission Change rulemaking 

through the SB 19-181 comment portal. That portal can be accessed here.  

  

98

11.



Whitepaper   
November 1, 2019 
Page 4 

 

100 Series-Definitions 

SB 19-181 revised the definition of “waste” to provide that it does not include 

nonproduction of the mineral resource if it is necessary to protect public health, safety, 

welfare, the environment or wildlife resources. § 34-60-103(11)(b), C.R.S. Accordingly, the 

Commission’s definition of “waste” will be revised to reflect the statutory change. The 100 

Series will continue to be revised as new terms or revisions to existing definitions are made 

in the course of amendments to the various rule sets.  

200 Series-General Rules  

 The 200 Series Rules address, among other things, the office and duties of the director 

and the secretary of the Commission, record keeping, reporting of information to the 

Commission, and Comprehensive Drilling Plans.  

 200 Series Generally 

 SB 19-181 provides that the current volunteer Commission will be replaced with a full 

time professional commission. § 34-60-104.3, C.R.S. Amendments to the 200 Series are 

necessary to facilitate the transition from a volunteer Commission to a professional 

Commission, which includes consideration of the duties of the professional commissioners, 

the director, and the secretary.  

 Rule 205 

 Staff proposes amendments to Rule 205 that would clarify that all documents, 

records, data, tests, and reports that must be created per a Commission Rule, also must be 

maintained and made available to the Commission upon request.  

 

99

11.



Whitepaper   
November 1, 2019 
Page 5 

 

 Rule 216 – Comprehensive Drilling Plans 

 Comprehensive Drilling Plans (“CDPs”) allow for the consideration of oil and gas 

development in a specific area. CDPs consider oil and gas development in a holistic manner 

through landscape level planning and regulatory review. Taken as a whole, SB 19-181 

directs the Commission to encourage and incentivize holistic oil and gas development, 

rather than single well location approvals. Staff will suggest revisions to Rule 216 to 

incentivize this development approach. In addition, building upon the current Rule 216, 

staff recommends revisions that incorporate a phased approach to planning and 

development, with the CDP design elements updated throughout the application and 

evaluation process.  

300 Series-Drilling, Development, Production, Abandonment 

 The 300 Series addresses the permitting, drilling and operation of locations and 

wells for oil and gas production. Staff proposes several substantive changes to the 300 

Series designed to accomplish necessary structural improvements to the permitting 

process to better address environmental impacts from oil and gas development, provide a 

comprehensive approach to permitting, and facilitate alternative location analysis and 

cumulative impacts evaluation.1    

  

 

                                                 
1 The alternative location analysis rulemaking is expected to be heard at the Commission’s 
March 25 and 26, 2020 hearing. The cumulative impacts rulemaking is expected to be 
heard at the Commission’s April 22 and 23, 2020 hearing.  

100

11.



Whitepaper   
November 1, 2019 
Page 6 

 

 Oil and Gas Development Plan 

 Currently, oil and gas development is permitted through three different decision 

points. First, an operator applies for, and the Commission must issue, an order approving a 

drilling and spacing unit, if necessary. Once a drilling and spacing unit is in place, an 

operator will submit to Commission staff a Form 2A, which permits the proposed oil and 

gas location. Then, the operator will submit a Form 2 to permit each well proposed on the 

oil and gas location. 

 This current process is deficient in several respects. First, it does not easily allow the 

Commission to have a comprehensive understanding of an operator’s proposed development 

plan for an area. Second, it does not readily facilitate a) staff’s consideration of how one 

proposed development will affect the larger development of the resources in an area, and b) 

the impacts on people, the environment, and wildlife. Third, it does not lend itself to SB 19-

181’s comprehensive planning approach. Fourth, it is inefficient to have three separate 

review and comment processes for staff, operators, and stakeholders. Fifth, it does not lend 

itself to SB 19-181’s expectation that local governments, if they choose to do so, may be 

involved in the siting of an oil and gas location before the Commission proceeds to make 

decisions on drilling and spacing unit applications, Form 2As, and Form 2s.    

 Staff proposes that the 300 Series be revised so that all new oil and gas development 

be permitted through a single, comprehensive application. The single application would 

include a proposed drilling and spacing unit (assuming one is necessary and has not already 

been created); and identify the site(s) of the oil and gas locations, the number of wells and 

production facilities on each pad, and flowlines or other plans for moving fluids. The plan 

101

11.



Whitepaper   
November 1, 2019 
Page 7 

 

would also include and address, as needed, all other COGCC permits necessary for the 

operation of the location.   

  Who Decides to Approve an Application, and what is Staff’s Role?  

 Currently, permitting decisions for oil and gas locations and wells are made by the 

Director and not the Commission. With the move from a volunteer Commission to a 

Professional Commission, consideration should be given to whether the Professional 

Commission makes the final determination on oil and gas applications.  

 Staff would be a party to the application, recommending the application be approved, 

denied, or approved with modifications. Before SB 19-181, the Act charged the Commission 

to “foster the responsible, balanced development” of oil and gas resources. Page 6, Senate 

Bill 19-181. Fostering oil and gas development impeded staff’s ability to deny a permit. 

Operators would withdraw permits or staff would work with the operator to put in place the 

most protective best management practices on the location. SB 19-181 removed “foster” and 

instead directs the Commission to “regulate the development and production” of oil and gas 

resources. § 34-60-102(1)(a)(I), C.R.S. Consistent with this amendment, staff would realign 

its application review process to recognize that under certain circumstances an oil and gas 

development plan could be recommended for denial.  

  Pre-filing Notice 

 Currently, various notices are required by statute and rule that result in some persons 

receiving multiple notices and other persons not receiving notices at all. In an effort to 

streamline and improve notices, staff is proposing to consolidate notice requirements to 

avoid redundancy and provide more information to the notice recipient. 

102

11.



Whitepaper   
November 1, 2019 
Page 8 

 

 At least 60-days before submitting the application, the operator must give notice of its 

intended development to: 

1. all mineral owners within the proposed or existing drilling and spacing unit; 

2. all surface owners within the proposed or existing drilling and spacing unit; 

3. all surface owners within 2,640 feet of the edge of the plan’s proposed oil and gas 

location(s); 

4. all residents within 2,640 feet of the edge of the plan’s proposed oil and gas 

location(s); 

5. the relevant local government2; 

6. the local government within which the minerals proposed for development are 

located; 

7. all neighboring local governments within 2,640 feet of the edge of the plan’s 

proposed oil and gas location(s); 

8. the Colorado Department of Health and Environment; 

9. the Colorado Parks and Wildlife; 

10.  the Colorado State Land Board (if a mineral owner); and 

11.  the U.S. Bureau of Land Management (if a mineral owner). 

  Application  

 No less than 60 days after completing the notice requirements, the operator will 

submit its application to the COGCC. In the application, the operator must identify whether 

                                                 
2 Relevant Local Government is an existing defined term. 100 Series. 

103

11.



Whitepaper   
November 1, 2019 
Page 9 

 

the plan would have impacts on certain receptors and, if so, to what degree. For instance, is 

the proposed location in close proximity to a subdivision or a wildlife habitat? What are the 

impacts to air quality? What are the lighting, visual, and noise impacts? These and other 

criteria must be addressed in the application. If one or more criteria are present in an 

application, then staff will undertake a site specific protection analysis (“SSPA”).  

  Non- SSPA Applications 

 If the application does not trigger any criteria, then a SSPA is not required and the 

application, per SB 19-181, could be presumed to protect against adverse impacts. The 

application would be noticed for hearing and public comment. Taking into consideration 

public comment, staff would make a recommendation to the Commission whether the 

application protects against adverse impacts. Consistent with SB 19-181, the Commission 

must “minimize adverse impacts”, to the extent necessary and reasonable “to protect,” and 

to “minimize and mitigate the extent and severity of those impacts that cannot be avoided.” 

§ 34-60-103(5.5)(b), C.R.S. 

  SSPA Applications 

 If a SSPA is required, staff will conduct an analysis of the application to make an 

initial evaluation of whether the oil and gas activities proposed will protect against adverse 

impacts. If staff’s evaluation finds that the oil and gas activities proposed will protect 

against adverse impacts, then the application can proceed to be noticed for hearing before 

the Commission. 

 Once the application is noticed for hearing, it would be made available for public 

comment. The applicant would also submit its final SSPA at this time. Taking into 

104

11.



Whitepaper   
November 1, 2019 
Page 10 

 

consideration public comment and evaluation of the final site-specific analysis, staff would 

make a recommendation to the Commission whether the application protects against 

adverse impacts.      

 Rule 312 - Transfer of Permits   

 The Commission’s Rule 312 requires operators to file no later than “30 days after 

initial sale of oil and gas a Certificate of Clearance and/or Change of Operator.” Rule 312.a. 

A Change of Operator occurs when an existing oil and gas facility is sold or transferred to a 

new operator. Under the current Rule 312, staff is not made aware of the pending transfer 

of an oil and gas facility. There are many reasons that staff may need to know when and to 

whom a facility is proposed to be transferred. For instance, staff must ensure that the new 

owner take ongoing responsibility for remediation of a spill or release. .  

 Staff proposes that Rule 312 be amended to require an operator to apply to the 

Commission for a Change of Operator 60 days before the transfer or assignment of 

ownership or operation of an oil and gas facility. Until the Change of Operator is approved, 

the current operator will remain responsible for maintaining the oil and gas facilities, 

reporting operations in compliance with the Commission’s Rules, and for any spill, release, 

remediation or other ongoing work. The Director has discretion to deny a Change in 

Operator request if staff determines that the new operator is unable to operate the oil and 

gas location in compliance with Commission Rules. The Director’s decision would be 

appealable to the full Commission. Upon approval of the Change of Operator, the new 

operator will become responsible for maintaining the oil and gas facilities in compliance 

with the Commission’s Rules. This responsibility includes any latent or existing 

105

11.



Whitepaper   
November 1, 2019 
Page 11 

 

environmental impacts, known or unknown, resulting from management of produced fluids 

or exploration and production waste. 

 Rule 333 - Seismic Operations 

 Operators are required to submit a Form 20 Notice of Intent to Conduct Seismic 

Operations prior to commencement of shothole drilling or recording operations. Staff is 

considering revising Rule 333 to require additional planning and notification requirements. 

Staff is also proposing distance requirements for vibroseis trucks operating within 

municipal boundaries in close proximity to homes, underground utilities, and other 

structures.     

 Rule 324 - Pollution 

 Rule 324A requires operators to take “precautions to prevent significant adverse 

environmental impacts to air, water, soil, or biological resources to the extent necessary to 

protect public health, safety, and welfare, including the environment and wildlife 

resources, taking into consideration cost-effectiveness and technical feasibility…” 

Consistent with SB 19-181, staff proposes removal of “cost-effectiveness and technical 

feasibility” from the Rule. Moreover, staff proposes revising Rule 324A to clearly require 

that operators must conduct operations in a manner that prevents adverse impacts to air, 

water, soil, or biological resources to the extent necessary to protect public health, safety, 

and welfare, including the environment and wildlife resources.      

 

 

 

106

11.



Whitepaper   
November 1, 2019 
Page 12 

 

400 Series-Unit Operations, Recovery, Storage 

The State Oil and Gas Regulatory Exchange (“SOGRE”) is conducting a review of the 

Commission’s Natural Gas Storage Rules in the 400 Series. Once that review is complete, 

the Commission will evaluate what rulemaking is to be completed for the 400 Series. 

500 Series-Rules of Practice and Procedure 

 The 500 Series Rules set forth the process and procedures for all proceedings before 

the Commission. The 500 Series Rules are relied upon by members of the regulated 

community, mineral owners, surface owners, local governments, and other interested 

stakeholders who appear before the Commission.  

In July of this year, the Commission adopted amendments to the 500 Series Rules to 

satisfy several of SB 19-181’s provisions regarding the Commission’s hearings process. The 

July amendments allow the Commission to appoint hearing officers to conduct hearings and 

revise the evidentiary requirements for pooling and drilling and spacing unit applications. 

The July rulemaking was a prelude to staff’s proposed 500 Series revisions as part of the 

Mission Change rulemaking.  

Rule 508 - Local Public Forum     

 The current Rule 508 establishes a complicated and antiquated process by which local 

communities and local governments may seek a local public forum on applications that 

would result in more than one well site or multi-well pad per 40-acre quarter-quarter 

section. Rule 508 was infrequently invoked. The intent behind Rule 508 is to provide local 

communities with the opportunity to have a Commission hearing in communities that are 

affected by large-scale oil and gas development. Staff proposes eliminating the current Rule 

107

11.



Whitepaper   
November 1, 2019 
Page 13 

 

508 and replacing it with a simplified rule that provides “affected persons,” including 

affected local governments, the ability to request the Commission hold a local public hearing 

to gather feedback on proposed oil and gas operations.   

Rule 509 - Standing 

In the course of the July rulemaking, the Commissioners unanimously approved a 

motion that directed staff to ensure that the issue of standing be addressed in the Mission 

Change Rulemaking. Under current Commission Rules, relatively few persons have the 

right to protest applications, including permitting and spacing applications. In response to 

the Commission’s directive, and in furtherance of a neutral regulatory framework, staff 

proposes that standing be broadened to provide that any “affected person” have standing to 

protest hearing applications.  

An “affected person” is someone who has a personal justiciable interest related to a 

legal right, duty, privilege, power, or economic interest affected by an application. Affected 

persons can be individuals, an organization, or a local government. Staff proposes adding to 

the 100 Series a definition of “affected person.”  

Proposed amendments to Rule 509 would set forth criteria that the Commission can 

consider when determining whether a person has demonstrated a justiciable interest that 

is impacted by an application. The Commission may consider among other things: 

1. whether there is a legally protected interest at issue; 

2. the person’s distance from the activity proposed in the application; 

3. whether a reasonable relationship exists between the proposed activity and the 

person’s interest; 

108

11.



Whitepaper   
November 1, 2019 
Page 14 

 

4. the likely impact of the regulated activity on the person’s health, safety, welfare 

or use of property; 

5. the likely impact of the proposed activity on the use of the impacted natural 

resource by the person; and 

6. for governmental entities, the authority over or interest in the issues relevant to 

the application. 

 Rule 524 - Responsible Party 

 Rule 524 governs hearing procedures when there is a question of who the responsible 

operator is for a violation of a Commission rule. Rule 524.e. provides that “an operator will 

enjoy a rebuttable presumption against mitigation liability under § 34-60-124(7), C.R.S., for 

ongoing significant adverse environmental impacts where the violation which led to such 

impacts was committed by a predecessor operator” and the operator conducted an 

environmental investigation of the location which did not identify “significant adverse 

environmental impacts” at the location. A “rebuttable presumption” means that the 

Commission must take as true that the current operator is not responsible for the 

environmental impact and therefore is not responsible for remediating the impact.  

When staff becomes aware of an environmental impact to a location, they engage with 

the current operator to have the environmental impact cleaned up. Some operators will work 

with staff and clean the location up even though they did not cause the impact. However, 

there are instances when operators do not cooperate with staff and instead refuse to conduct 

the cleanup of the location they own and operate because the environmental impact was the 

fault of a prior operator. Under Rule 524.e., these operators enjoy a “rebuttable 

109

11.



Whitepaper   
November 1, 2019 
Page 15 

 

presumption” that they are not liable for the cleanup. Staff proposes removing the 

“rebuttable presumption” language from Rule 524.e. to address this issue.  

600 Series-Safety Regulations  

 The 600 Series Rules set forth the safety and facility operation requirements.  

 Rule 602 - General Safety Requirements 

 Staff is considering requiring operators establish and maintain a process safety 

management program for all oil and gas operations. The process safety management 

program will include at a minimum: 

1. Management of Change program; 

2. Operational practices and procedure program; and a 

3. Pre-Startup Safety program. 

Implementation of a process safety management program will work to ensure that 

operations are conducted with due regard for the preservation and conservation of property 

and for the protection of public health, safety, welfare, the environment, wildlife, and safety 

of employees and people. 

 Rule 603.f. - Statewide equipment, weeds, waste, and trash requirements 

 Staff proposes revising 603.f. to prohibit the storage, placement, or maintenance of 

equipment, vehicles, trailers, commercial products, chemicals, drums, totes, containers, 

materials, and all other supplies not necessary for use on an oil and gas location. 

 
 
 
 

110

11.



Whitepaper   
November 1, 2019 
Page 16 

 

Rule 604. - Setback and Mitigation Measures For Oil and Gas Facilities, Drilling, 
And Well Servicing Operations  
 
The current buffer zones, urban and non-urban mitigation area, and mitigation 

measure rules were developed over the course of the last decade. In considering the oil and 

gas location application process discussed in the 300 Series above, staff will consider 

necessary revisions to Rule 604., including the role of best management practices in the 

permitting of an oil and gas location.  

 Rule 605. - Oil and Gas Facilities 

 Staff proposes that operators conduct a visual inspection of all production tanks on a 

monthly basis to look for leaks and damage to the tank(s). Operators would also be required 

to conduct an annual inspection of all steel aboveground storage tanks according to the 

requirements of STI SP001 “Standard for the Inspection of Aboveground Storage Tanks.” 

 Rule 609 - Statewide Groundwater Baseline Sampling & Monitoring 

 Staff proposes consolidation of the statewide groundwater baseline sampling rules.  

This change would result in the removal of Rule 608.b. for water well sampling near coalbed 

methane wells and removal of Rule 318A.f., the Greater Wattenberg Area specific 

groundwater baseline sampling and monitoring rule. Staff proposes that these rules be 

consolidated and updated with Rule 609 for statewide sampling and monitoring. 

 Emission Reductions from Pre-Production Activities 

 Commission Rules currently require reduced emission completions (i.e. “green 

completions”). See Rules 604.c.2.C, and 805.b.3. In addition to these current requirements, 

staff recognizes that more can be done to address emissions in the pre-production phase to 

111

11.



Whitepaper   
November 1, 2019 
Page 17 

 

protect public health, safety, welfare, and the environment. Staff is considering whether to 

require the capture of natural gas that reaches the surface during drilling, completion, 

recompletion, flowback, hydraulic fracturing, and initial production to the extent reasonable 

and necessary to avoid adverse impacts to public health, safety, welfare, and the 

environment. Staff recognizes that variability in the amount of gas released must be given 

consideration when considering the ability to capture gas. Staff also recognizes that during 

upset conditions capture may not be feasible or safe. 

  Staff is also cognizant of SB 19-181’s directive to the Colorado Department of Public 

Health and Environment (“CDPHE”) to promulgate rules that address emission control 

regulations from oil and gas exploration and production facilities. § 25-7-109(10)(a), C.R.S. 

Staff wants to ensure that any Commission rule that may address emission reductions 

compliments CDPHE’s regulatory program and does not conflict with or impede on that 

program.    

 Flaring  

 Flaring of gas has significant consequences for the climate, ozone, and waste. Although 

flaring natural gas converts methane into carbon dioxide, a less powerful climate pollutant, 

flaring is a source of air pollution, including particulate matter and nitrogen oxides. Flaring 

also reduces emissions of volatile organic compounds that contribute to ozone formation. 

However, nitrogen oxides generated by flaring can also contribute to ozone formation. 

Natural gas that is flared rather than captured is arguably wasted because it is not used 

beneficially to generate electricity, provide heat, or manufacture plastics. Additionally, 

112

11.



Whitepaper   
November 1, 2019 
Page 18 

 

there is an economic loss to mineral owners who will not receive royalty payments and to 

the State on lost severance tax revenues.  

 Commission Rule 912.a. prohibits unnecessary or excessive venting or flaring. 

However, neither “unnecessary” nor “excessive” are defined. Rule 912.b also provides 

exceptions for flaring during upsets, well maintenance, well stimulation flowback, purging 

operations, and productivity tests. Staff proposes moving the flaring rule to the 600 Series 

and revising it to prohibit an operator from flaring or venting gas produced from a well for 

more than 60 days from the date of first production. Exceptions to this prohibition would 

include emergencies or to protect public health and safety.  

700 Series-Financial Assurance and Environmental Response 

SB 19-181 specifically calls upon the Commission to conduct a rulemaking that 

addresses how to assure that oil and gas operators have the necessary financial backing to 

conduct operations in compliance with the Commission’s rules. The language of SB 19-181 

provides that the Commission will conduct a rulemaking that: 

must consider: increasing financial assurance for inactive wells 
and for wells transferred to a new owner; requiring a financial 
assurance account, which must remain tied to the well in the 
event of a transfer of ownership, to be fully funded in the initial 
years of operation for each new well to cover future costs to plug, 
reclaim, and remediate the well; and creating a pooled fund to 
address orphaned wells for which no owner, operator, or 
responsible party is capable of covering the costs of plugging, 
reclamation, and remediation. 

 
§ 34-60-106(13), C.R.S. 
The Commission expects to conduct the financial assurance rulemaking after July 1, 2020, 

when the Professional Commission is seated. 

113

11.



Whitepaper   
November 1, 2019 
Page 19 

 

800 Series-Aesthetic and Noise Control 
 
 The 800 Series Rules address noise, odor, dust, and other aesthetic impacts. These 

aesthetic impacts can be a significant source of concern for people and wildlife near oil and 

gas development. Staff proposes refining its Rules to better account for these aesthetic 

impacts. Staff is also considering the role its 800 Series Rules play in local jurisdictions that 

elect to regulate for aesthetic and noise concerns. It is important to note that these Rules 

will influence and be an integral component of the rules that result from the Cumulative 

Impacts and Alternative Location Analysis rulemakings.  

 Rule 802 - Noise Abatement 

  Staff is considering changes that would improve and strengthen the required best 

management practices for addressing noise impacts to people and wildlife. Staff is 

considering changes that would apply a-scale noise thresholds to sensitive wildlife habitats. 

Staff is also considering specifying when and how ambient noise background surveys are to 

be completed and how they will be integrated into location assessment.   

 Rule 805 - Odors  

 Staff is considering revisions to the odor rules that could better address how odors 

are measured, and facilitate coordination with CDPHE Air Pollution Control Division odor 

regulations.  

 Rule 805.c. – Fugitive Dust 

 Staff proposes amending Rule 805.c. to require operators to develop a dust control 

plan. The plan would address each phase of oil and gas operation, and propose site-specific 

best management practices to minimize and suppress dust.  

114

11.



Whitepaper   
November 1, 2019 
Page 20 

 

900 Series-Exploration and Production Waste Management 

 The 900 Series Rules address the environmental regulation of oil and gas operations 

in the State. These Rules regulate how exploration and production (“E&P”) waste is to be 

managed; the cleanup of spills and releases; and establishes standards for the closure of pit 

and buried vessels. Staff proposes several significant changes to the 900 Series to fulfill the 

mandate of SB 19-181.  

 Rules 902, 904 and 911 - Pits 

 Staff proposes revisions that will strengthen the construction and lining requirements 

for pits. Because unlined pits represent an ongoing release of E&P waste into the 

environment, staff proposes no longer allowing such pits to be permitted and restricting the 

operations of such existing pits.  

 Rule 905 - Closure of Oil and Gas Facilities 

 The current Rule 905 requires that production and special purpose pits and buried and 

partially buried water vessels be closed in accordance with an approved Form 27, Site 

Investigation and Remediation Workplan. Before an operator can proceed to close a pit or 

buried vessel, it must submit to Commission staff a plan to investigate and verify that there 

are no impacts from the storage of E&P waste in the pit or buried vessel. If an impact is 

discovered the operator must propose a plan to remediate the impacted media and 

environmental resources. This plan is submitted on a Form 27, which is reviewed by staff. 

Notably, Rule 905 applies only to pits and buried vessels; it does not currently apply to an 

entire oil and gas facility. The Commission defines oil and gas facilities to be “all equipment 

or improvements used or installed at an oil and gas location for the exploration, production, 

115

11.



Whitepaper   
November 1, 2019 
Page 21 

 

withdrawal, treatment, or processing of crude oil, condensate, E&P waste, or gas.” Staff is 

considering requiring a Form 27 for the closure of all oil and gas facilities. Expanding Rule 

905 to require a Form 27 for closure of all oil and gas facilities allows requires oil and gas 

locations to be remediated upon closure. This change is supported by the findings of the 

“Risk-Based Inspections: Strategies to Address Environmental Risk Associated with Oil and 

Gas Operations” report published on the COGCC website, dated February 1, 2014. 

 Rule 906 - Spills and Releases 

 As required by the Act, Rule 906 currently requires the reporting of an uncontained 

spill or release of E&P waste or produced fluids that is greater than 1 barrel; a spill or 

release greater than 5 barrels even if it is contained; and any amount of E&P waste if it 

threatens waters of the state, a residence, livestock, or a public byway. Rule 905.(1). Staff 

recognizes that any spill of E&P waste may have adverse impacts on environmental 

resources, land, people, and wildlife. Accordingly, staff is considering other reporting 

thresholds, including: 

1. When any volume of E&P waste “daylights” to the surface; 

2. The discovery of 1 cubic yard or more of material impacted by a current or historic 

spill or release; 

3. The discovery of impacted groundwater or surface water; 

4. Any suspected spill or release if the volume of the E&P Waste cannot be 

determined; and 

5. A spill or release of any volume that leaves an oil and gas location 

116

11.



Whitepaper   
November 1, 2019 
Page 22 

 

 With the report of a spill or release, operators must submit a Form 19 that identifies 

how it plans to address cleanup of the spill or release, but does not require any additional 

process. Staff is evaluating establishing a process to create certainty for all stakeholders. 

The proposed changes in the reporting of known or suspected E&P Waste releases will be 

integral to improving the protection of public health, safety, welfare, the environment, and 

wildlife resources. 

Drill Cuttings Rule 907.g. - E&P Waste Management 
 
  Rule 907 establishes the acceptable practices to treat, dispose, and in some cases 

reuse different types of E&P waste. Specific rules include requirements for produced water, 

drilling fluids, oily waste, other E&P waste and non-E&P waste. Staff proposes revising 

Rule 907 to outline acceptable treatment/disposal of drill cuttings. 

  Rule 910 - Soil and Ground Water Sampling  

 Rule 910 establishes the concentrations for contaminants of concern in soil and ground 

water and provides the standards to be followed when testing for these containments. The 

contaminants covered in Rule 910 are set forth in Table 910-1 and in the Colorado Water 

Quality Control Commission’s (“WQCC”) ground water standards and classifications. Staff 

is considering clarifying the Director’s existing authority as an implementing agency of 

Regulation No. 41, The Basic Standards for Ground Water, to require testing for oil and gas 

exploration related compounds or parameters in addition to those identified in Table 910-1. 

Under staff’s proposal, the Director may seek testing: 

117

11.



Whitepaper   
November 1, 2019 
Page 23 

 

1. For any element, compound, or parameter listed in Table A and Tables 1, 2, 3, and 

4 of Regulation Number 41 – The Basic Standards for Ground Water adopted by 

the WQCC (5 CCR 1002-41); 

2. In accordance with the Narrative Standards of Regulation Number 41, and 41.5A, 

any element, compound, or parameter not listed in Table A or Tables 1, 2, 3, and 

4 of Regulation 41, which alone or in combination with other substances, are in 

concentrations shown to be: 

a. carcinogenic, mutagenic, teratogenic, or toxic to human beings, or 

b. a danger to the public health, safety, or welfare. 

1000 Series-Reclamation 

 The 1000 Series Rules establish the requirements operators must meet when 

reclaiming lands used in oil and gas development. More often than not, the owner of the 

surface where oil and gas development occurred is not the same as the oil and gas operator. 

Staff understands that amendments to the 1000 Series need to consider a surface owner’s 

wishes while ensuring that lands are reclaimed in a manner that protects public welfare, 

the environment, and wildlife. Additionally, staff will consider how permitting process 

improvements can translate more simply into establishing reclamation expectations. 

 Rule 1001.c. – Surface Owner Waiver of 1000-Series Rules 

 Rule 1001.c. currently provides that an operator is relieved from complying with  

Rule 1002 (except Rule 1002.e.(1), 1002.e.(4), and 1002.f), Rule 1003, and Rule 1004 (except 

Rule 1004.c.(4) and 1004.c.(5)), if it demonstrates that compliance is not necessary to protect 

the public health, safety, welfare, and the environment. Rules 1002, 1003 and 1004 address 

118

11.



Whitepaper   
November 1, 2019 
Page 24 

 

critical reclamation issues such as topsoil removal, segregation and protection, interim 

reclamation of oil and gas locations, restoration and revegetation of lands, weed control, and 

final reclamation of oil and gas locations. Staff is considering revisions to this Rule to 

alleviate conflict in the process and better define what can be considered. As part of this, 

staff is considering a surface owner variance request process for surface disturbance 

minimization, stormwater, and interim reclamation, including whether to accept variance 

requests for stormwater.    

 Rule 1002.f. – Stormwater management  

 Staff proposes removing the requirement for a post-construction stormwater program. 

In its place, staff is considering requiring operators to implement and maintain stormwater 

best management practices on all oil and gas locations during and after construction.  

1100 Series-Flowline Regulations 

SB 19-181 specifically calls upon the Commission to conduct a rulemaking to amend 

its “flowline and inactive, temporarily abandoned, and shut-in well rules” to meet the 

Mission Change mandate. § 34-60-106(19), C.R.S. SB 19-181 also directs that the 

Commission’s flowline rules must be amended to allow for public disclosure of flowline 

information, and to evaluate and determine “when inactive, temporarily abandoned, and 

shut-in wells must be inspected” before being put back into production. § 34-60-106(19)(a)-

(b), C.R.S.  

On October 8, 2019, the Commission noticed the flowline rulemaking for hearing. The 

flowline rulemaking prehearing process is underway, and the rulemaking hearing 

119

11.



Whitepaper   
November 1, 2019 
Page 25 

 

scheduled for November 19-22, 2019 in Greeley, Colorado. The Commission’s flowline 

rulemaking page can be found here.  

 
1200 Series-Protection of Wildlife Resources 

The Commission expects to conduct a rulemaking specific to the 1200 Series after 

July 1, 2020, when the Professional Commission is seated. However, it is important to note 

that throughout the Mission Change rulemaking, specific revisions are under consideration 

to address wildlife concerns, especially those that relate to process.  

   

 

 

120

11.



 

November 6, 2019 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Superior Alarm - Town Hall Security System Upgrade 

Summary:   

CIRSA recommended and necessary security upgrade for Town Hall. 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Vacant Seat Trustee Budinger: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

121

12.



Estimate
DATE

5/8/2018

ESTIMATE NO.

9469

NAME / ADDRESS

Paonia Community Center
Neil Ferguson

Ship To

Paonia Community Center
214 Grand Avenue
Paonia, CO 81428

To accept estimate; sign and date

TOTAL

PO Box 1706
Montrose, CO 81402

Office location:
960 N. Townsend Ave. 
Montrose, CO 81401
970-249-4537 office
970-240-0366 fax

Dan Culmer
General Manager

DESCRIPTION QTY TOTAL

Fire Alarm System 6,038.40

Equipment :
1 - Honeywell Vista 128 FBP Approved Combo Fire and Security Panel
1 - Honeywell 6160 Keypad/Annunciator
1 - Honeywell 5881 H Wireless Receiver
12 - Honeywell 5808-W3 Wireless Smoke Detectors (Through out)
3 - Honeywell 5809 Wireless Heat Detectors (I.T. and Electrical Rooms)
1 - Firelite BG-12 Manual Pull Station (Main Hall)
4 - System Sensor Fire Horn/Strobes (Through out)
2 - System Sensor Fire Strobes Only (Bathrooms)
2 - 12 volt 7 Ah Backup Batteries
Qty - Wire, Straps and Connectors

$25.00 per month for 24 hour monitoring of the system over telephone lines. Two year contract.
Upon receipt of the signed 'Sales and Monitoring Agreement', an installation date will be scheduled.

Optional Addition to the System - Clerk & Recorder Security System Added - Extra $456.00

Equipment :
2 - Wireless Door Contacts
3 - Honeywell Wireless Motion Detectors
1 - Panic Button
Sales Tax 0.00

In accordance with the agreement between SUPERIOR ALARM & FIRE PROTECTION, L.L.C.
(SAFP") and Subscriber, which this Estimate supplements, the listed equipment will be installed. 
Should additional devices be required by Subscriber, code or the AHJ then the additional devices and
labor to install the additional devices will be charged and Subscriber agrees to pay such charges at
time of installation.  All provisions of the agreement govern the installation and nothing contained
herein is intended to modify or terminate the agreement or any provision contained therein.

$6,038.40

122

12.



 

November 6, 2019 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

CIRSA – Excess Crime Renewal Acceptance 

Summary:   

The annual renewal review for the CIRSA optional coverage for excess crime coverage. 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Vacant Seat Trustee Budinger: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

123

13.



124

13.



125

13.



126

13.



127

13.



 

November 6, 2019 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

2020 Budget Discussion Continued 

Summary:   

Review and Discussion of the revised 2020 budget. 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Vacant Seat Trustee Budinger: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

128

14.



 

November 5, 2019 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Ordinance 2019-12 Establishing Wastewater/Sewer Rates  

Summary:   

Ordinance 2019-12 includes the proposed rate increase of $5.00 across all users. 

 

Notes: 

 

Another option the Board may want to consider in the future is a use rate based on water use. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Vacant Seat Trustee Budinger: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

129

15.



ORDINANCE 2019-12 PG 1 
 

STATE OF COLORADO 

TOWN OF PAONIA, COLORADO 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2019-12 

 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF PAONIA ESTABLISHING 

WASTEWATER/SEWER RATES AND CHARGES 

 

WHEREAS, Section 13-5-230 of the Paonia Municipal Code authorizes the Board of Trustees 

to establish by ordinance all wastewater/sewer rates and charges and the effective date of said 

rates and charges; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees has made a thorough review of its existing Ordinances 

pertaining to wastewater/sewer rates and charges; and 

WHEREAS, the rates levied for wastewater/sewer services must be calculated to meet the cost 

of providing wastewater/sewer services, including maintenance, capital reinvestment, and related 

debt service to avoid deficit spending. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE 

TOWN OF PAONIA, COLORADO that the following wastewater/sewer rates shall be charged 

by the Town of Paonia: 

 

A) Wastewater/Sewer Rate within the Town 
 

The in-Town wastewater/sewer rate shall be thirty-nine dollars ($ 39.00) per month for each 

unit within the boundaries of the Town of Paonia.  

 

B)  Wastewater/Sewer Rate outside the Town 
 

The out-of-Town wastewater/sewer rate shall be fifty-eight dollars ($ 58.00) per month for each 

unit outside the boundaries of the Town of Paonia. 

 

C)  Wastewater/Sewer Standby Fee  

 

The wastewater/sewer standby fee shall be thirty dollars ($ 30.00) per month for each unit. 

 

D)  Notice 

 

1.  Notice of the wastewater/sewer rates shall be given by publication of this Ordinance in 

a newspaper of general circulation in the County so as to inform all users of such changes.    

 

 2.  A copy of this Ordinance shall also be mailed to the owners of properties outside the 

boundaries of the Town of Paonia using the wastewater/sewer system at the last known 

address of said owners as shown in the records of the Town. 

 

E)  Effective Date 

130

15.



ORDINANCE 2019-12 PG 2 
 

 

The wastewater/sewer rates set forth herein shall become effective on January 1, 2020. 

 

INTRODUCED, READ, APPROVED, ADOPTED AND ORDERED TO BE PUBLISHED 
at a regular meeting of the Board of Trustees of the Town of Paonia, Colorado, on this 12th day of 

November 2019. 

 

ATTEST: 

 
 
             
J. Corinne Ferguson, Town Clerk   Charles Stewart, Mayor 

131

15.



 

November 5, 2019 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Resolution 2019-17 Establishing Garbage Rates  

Summary:   

Resolution 2019-17 includes the proposed rate increases of $2.00 across all uses and a $10 

increase for 3-yard dumpster pickups.  

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Vacant Seat Trustee Budinger: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

132

16.



 

Resolution 2019-17 Garbage Rates  1 

 

TOWN OF PAONIA, COLORADO 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2019-17 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF PAONIA ESTABLISHING GARBAGE RATES 

AND CHARGES 

 

WHEREAS, Ordinance 2018-01 of the Town of Paonia authorizes the Board of Trustees to 

establish by resolution all garbage rates and charges and the effective date of said rates and 

charges; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees has made a thorough review of its existing Ordinances 

pertaining to garbage rates and charges; and 

WHEREAS, the rates levied for garbage services must be calculated to meet the cost of 

providing garbage services, including landfill tipping fees, maintenance, capital reinvestment, 

and related debt service, to avoid deficit spending. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE 

TOWN OF PAONIA, COLORADO, that the following garbage rates and charges shall be 

levied by the Town of Paonia: 

 

1. Rates.  The following rates shall be levied by the Town for regular refuse collection: 

A) For each weekly pickup, the charge will be $19.00 per month for a single 33-gallon 

container.  The charge will be $22.00 per month for two or three 33-gallon containers.  

The charge will be $29.00 per month for four or five 33-gallon containers. It is the 

decision of the Town Clerk and/or Administrator to determine which users fit into 

each of the categories listed herein based upon the average monthly usage of the user.  

In addition, a $10.00 per month fee will be charged for each additional 33-gallon 

container, or the equivalent refuse equal in volume to a 33-gallon container, placed 

out for collection that exceeds the user's categorized limit.  To qualify for the single 

33-gallon container charge, the person responsible for paying the trash bill must sign 

an agreement with the Town stating that they will not exceed the single, weekly, 33-

gallon container limitation. 

 

B) For each weekly pickup from a dumpster, the charge shall be $37.00 per month per 

two cubic yard dumpster and $47.00 per month per three cubic yard dumpster. 

 

C) For pickups more frequent than weekly, the per gallon charge shall be multiplied by 

the number of pickups per week. 

 

2. Oversize Refuse, Collection Rates.  The following rates shall be levied by the Town for 

oversize refuse collection:  

 

A)  Oversize refuse or garbage that does not fit in an approved container may be placed 

adjacent to the regularly sized refuse containers for collection.  The cost of removing 

133

16.



 

Resolution 2018-04 Garbage Rates  2 

 

the oversized refuse or garbage as determined by the garbage collectors, using the 33-

gallon container equivalents as noted in Section 1, will be considered as part of the 

category limit for the user.   

 

B) The Town may, at its discretion, apply an extra charge for each oversize item using 

the following formula: 

 

Oversize items that can be handled easily by one garbage collector will be 

charged $10.00. 

Oversize items that can be handled easily by two garbage collectors will be 

charged $15.00. 

Oversize items that can be handled by three garbage collectors will be charged 

$20.00. 

 

3)  Effective Date.  This Resolution and the garbage rates set forth herein shall become 

effective on January 1, 2019. 

 

PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Board of Trustees of the 

Town of Paonia, Colorado, on this ____th day of November 2019. 

 

 

Attest: 
        
             
J. Corinne Ferguson, Town Clerk   Charles Stewart, Mayor 
 

134

16.



 

November 5, 2019 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Resolution 2019-18 Establishing Water Rates & Charges 

Summary:   

Resolution 2019-18 includes the proposed rate increases as well as a new tier structure to 

incentivize and offer relief to conservative water users. 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Vacant Seat Trustee Budinger: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

135

17.



 

Resolution 2019-18 Water Rates 

 TOWN OF PAONIA, COLORADO 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2019-18 

 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF PAONIA ESTABLISHING WATER RATES AND 

CHARGES 

 

 WHEREAS, Section 13-1-20 of the Paonia Municipal Code authorizes the Board of 

Trustees to establish by resolution all water rates and charges and the effective date of said rates 

and charges; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees has made a thorough review of its existing 

Ordinances pertaining to water rates and charges; and 

WHEREAS, the rates levied for water services must be calculated to meet the cost of 

providing water services, including maintenance, capital reinvestment, and related debt service to 

avoid deficit spending. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF 

THE TOWN OF PAONIA, COLORADO that the following water rates shall be charged by 

the Town of Paonia: 

A) Basic Water Rate within the Town 
 

The basic in-Town water rate shall be thirty dollars ($30.00) per month for each residential 

customer service account and forty dollars ($40.00) per month for each commercial customer 

service account.   

 

B)  Basic Water Rate outside the Town 
 

The basic out-of-Town water rate shall be forty dollars ($40.00) per month for each residential 

customer service account and fifty-five dollars ($55.00) per month for each commercial 

customer service account.  Out-of-Town water users using municipal water through a single 

water meter shall be charged and shall be responsible for such water individually.  

 

C)  Usage  

 

An additional water rate shall be charged a user (customer service account/meter) for each 

1,000 gallons and proportionately for each fractional part thereof, as follows: 

 

In-Town Residential – Out of town Residential – Out of Town Commercial Rates 

 

1-1,000 gallons   $ 1.20 per thousand 

1,001-3,000 gallons   $ 1.40 per thousand 

3,001-5,000 gallons   $ 1.60 per thousand 

5,001-10,000 gallons   $ 1.80 per thousand 

10,001-15,000 gallons   $ 2.20 per thousand 

15,001-20,000 gallons   $ 2.70 per thousand 

136

17.



 

Resolution 2019-18 Water Rates 

20,001-30,000 gallons   $ 3.20 per thousand 

30,001-40,000 gallons   $ 3.80 per thousand 

40,001-50,000 gallons   $ 4.40 per thousand 

50,001-75,000 gallons   $ 5.00 per thousand 

75,001-100,000 gallons  $ 6.00 per thousand 

100,001 or more gallons  $ 6.50 per thousand 

 

In-Town Commercial Rates 

 

1-1,000 gallons   $ 0.30 per thousand 

1,001-3,000 gallons   $ 0.50 per thousand 

3,001-5,000 gallons   $ 0.80 per thousand 

5,001-10,000 gallons   $ 1.00 per thousand 

10,001-15,000 gallons   $ 1.50 per thousand 

15,001-20,000 gallons   $ 2.00 per thousand 

20,001-30,000 gallons   $ 2.50 per thousand 

30,001-40,000 gallons   $ 3.00 per thousand 

40,001-50,000 gallons   $ 3.50 per thousand 

50,001-75,000 gallons   $ 4.00 per thousand 

75,001-100,000 gallons  $ 4.50 per thousand 

100,001 or more gallons  $ 6.40 per thousand 

 

D)  Public Tap 

 

All persons receiving municipal water from the public tap furnished by the Town shall pay for 

such water at the rate of one-dollar ($1.00) per one hundred (100) gallons. 

 

E)  Service Fee 

 

There shall be a charge of thirty-five dollars ($35.00) for a new account set up. There shall be a 

charge of fifteen dollars ($15.00) for final meter readings. There may be a charge of fifty dollars 

($50.00) for same-day water shut-off/on for repairs or maintenance, when requested by property 

owner or agent. 

 

F) Effective Date 

 

The water rates set forth herein shall become effective on January 1, 2020. 

 

PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Board of Trustees of the 

Town of Paonia, Colorado, on this ____th  day of November 2019. 

 

Attest: 
        
             
J. Corinne Ferguson, Town Clerk   Charles Stewart, Mayor 
 

137

17.



 

November 8, 2019 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Establishing Utility Relief  

Using the Low-Income Energy Assistance Program as a mechanism for approval the Town 

Staff requests the Board to allow staff to establish and implement a program to offer a 30% 

relief off of water or wastewater base rates on a monthly basis for the winter months of 

November – April.  

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Vacant Seat Trustee Budinger: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

138

18.



 

November 5, 2019 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Public Hearing – 2020 Proposed Budget Hearing 

Summary:   

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Vacant Seat Trustee Budinger: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

139

19.



 

November 6, 2019 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Finance & Personnel 

Governmental Affairs & Public Safety 

Public Works-Utilities-Facilities 

Summary:   

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: VACANT Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

140

20.



 

November 6, 2019 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Space 2 Create 

Summary:   

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: VACANT Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

141

21.



 

November 6, 2019 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Tree Board 

Summary:   

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: VACANT Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

142

22.



 

November 6, 2019 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Adjournment 

Summary:   

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: VACANT Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

143

23.


	Top
	. Work Session
	Work Session
	Public Packet Budget - 2020

	1. ASF 4 - Visitors
	ASF 4 - Visitors &amp; Guests
	DCED
	DCED FUNDING Req 2019
	Final One Delta Presentation10-2019

	2. Consent Agenda
	Consent Agenda
	1022 - Special Meeting
	1022 Regular Minutes
	1104 - Special Meeting
	Blue Sage_Redacted

	3. ASF 6 - Mayor's Report
	ASF 6 - Mayor&#39;s Report

	4. Proclamation – Hospice Month
	Proclamation – Hospice Month
	Hope West Hospice Proclamation
	Hope West Hospice Proclamation

	5. ASF 7 - Staff Reports
	ASF 7 - Staff Reports
	ToP Community Survey #1 Final Results
	Enlightern Energy

	6. ASF 8 -Treasurer's Report
	ASF 8 -Treasurer&#39;s Report

	7. ASF 9 - Disbursements
	ASF 9 - Disbursements

	8. ASF - Streetlights
	ASF - Streetlights

	9. ASF - GOCO Grant-Park Master Plan
	ASF - GOCO Grant-Park Master Plan
	GOCO Grant - Parks Trails Agreement
	2018-12 - GOCO Park-Rec-Trail-MasterPlan

	10. Trustee Appointment – Letters of Interest
	Trustee Appointment – Letters of Interest
	CDiehl_Board LOI
	MPattisonLOI for Board of Trustees
	MPattison Resume 2019

	11. LGD - COGCC Discussion
	LGD - COGCC Discussion
	Proposed comments on Mission Change
	Mission_Change_Rulemaking_Whitepaper_20191101

	12. Superior Alarm - Town Hall Security System Upgrade
	Superior Alarm
	Superior Alarm Invoice Quote

	13. CIRSA – Excess Crime Renewal Acceptance
	CIRSA – Excess Crime Renewal Acceptance
	CIRSA Excess Crime Quote

	14. 2020 Budget Discussion
	2020 Budget Discussion

	15. Ordinance 2019-12 Sewer
	Ordinance 2019-12 Sewer
	2019-12 - Sewer Rates

	16. Resolution 2019-17 Garbage
	Resolution 2019-17 Garbage
	2019-17 Garbage Rates

	17. Resolution 2019-18 Water
	Resolution 2019-18 Water
	2019-18 Resolution of Water Rates and Charges

	18. Resolution 2019-tbd Utility Relief
	Utility Relief

	19. Public Hearing – 2020 Proposed Budget Hearing
	Public Hearing – 2020 Proposed Budget Hearing

	20. Committee Reports
	ASF 12 -Committee Reports

	21. ASF 11 -S2C
	ASF 11 -S2C

	22. ASF 12 -Tree Board
	ASF 12 -Tree Board

	23. ASF 13 -Adjournment
	ASF 13 -Adjournment

	Bottom

